
 

 

 

EXTRAORDINARY 

LICENSING 

COMMITTEE 
________________________________________________ 

 

Tuesday, 12 May 2015 at 6.30 p.m. 
 

The Council Chamber, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove 
Crescent, London, E14 2BG 

 
The meeting is open to the public to attend.  

 

Members: 
 

Ward Represented 

Chair:   Councillor Amy Whitelock Gibbs Bethnal Green; 
Vice-Chair:   Councillor Peter Golds Island Gardens; 
 
 Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed Bromley North; 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed Lansbury; 
Councillor Suluk Ahmed Spitalfields & Banglatown; 
Councillor Mahbub Alam St Dunstan's; 
Councillor Shah Alam Mile End; 
Councillor Amina Ali Bow East; 
Councillor Rachel Blake Bow East; 
Councillor Gulam Kibria Choudhury Poplar; 
Councillor Andrew Cregan Island Gardens; 
Councillor Md. Maium Miah Canary Wharf; 
Councillor Mohammed Mufti Miah Bromley North; 
Councillor Muhammad Ansar Mustaquim St Peter's; 
Councillor Candida Ronald Blackwall & Cubitt Town; 
 
[The quorum for this body is 3 Members] 
 

 

 

Contact for further enquiries:  
Simmi Yesmin, Democratic Services,  
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG 
Tel: 020 7364 4120 
E-mail: simmi.yesmin@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Web:http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 
 

Scan this code for 
an electronic 
agenda:  

 



 
 
 
 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 

 
Public Information 

Attendance at meetings. 
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis. 
 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings.  
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page. 

 
Mobile telephones 
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting.  

 
Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.      

 
Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall.  
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place  
Blackwall station: Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall.  
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf . 
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm) 

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx)  

Meeting access/special requirements.  
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda.  

     
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned. 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.   
 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date.  
 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, Apple and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users 

 



 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST          
(Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Monitoring Officer. 
 
 

 
 

PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

2. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

  

2 .1 Application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence 
for Charlie's Angels, 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA   

 
 

5 - 160 Whitechapel 

 
 
 



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 
 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.    
 
Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.   
 
 
Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) 
 
You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected. 
 
You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website. 
 
Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI). 
 
A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.    
 
 
Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings 
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:- 

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and 
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business. 

 
If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:- 

- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 
or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and  

- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 
decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision  

 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.   
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register.  
 
 
Further advice 
 
For further advice please contact:- 

Meic Sullivan-Gould, Monitoring Officer, Telephone Number: 020 7364 4801 
 

Page 2



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 
(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee : 

 
Licensing Committee 
 

Date  
 

12
th
 May 2015 

Classification 

 
Unclassified 

Report No. 
 
 

Agenda Item No. 

 

Report of : 

David Tolley 
Head of Consumer and Business 
Relations 
 
 
Originating Officer:  

Andrew Heron  
Licensing Officer 
 

Title: 

Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as 
amended)Application for a Sexual 
EntertainmentVenue Licence for Charlie’s 
Angels, 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA 
 
Ward affected:  

Whitechapel 
 

 
 

 
1.0 Summary 

 
Applicant: City Traders London Ltd. 
Name and Charlie’s Angels 
Address of Premises:  30 Alie Street 
 London    

   E1 8DA 
 
 
Licence sought: Local Government (Miscellaneous  

 Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended)
 Application for a Sexual Entertainment
 Venue Licence  
    
 
Objectors: Local Residents 
  Ward Councillors 
   

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and objections 

then adjudicate accordingly. 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

   
   
Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 

register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

 
File Only 
 

  
Andrew Heron 
020 7364 2665 

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 5



3.0 Background 
 

3.1 This is an application made by City Traders London Limited (08756000) 
for a Sexual Entertainment Venue licence under Schedule 3 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by reg. 
47 (4), Provisions of Services Regulations 2009 ‘the service regulations’)  
and the Policing and Crime Act 2009 for Charlie’s Angels, 30 Alie Street, 
London, E1 8DA. 
 

3.2 A licence from the Council is required for the use of a premise as a sex 
Establishment. A sexual entertainment venue is any premises at which 
relevant entertainment is provided before a live audience for the financial 
gain of the organiser or the entertainer.  
 
Relevant entertainment means: 

• any live performance; or  

• any live display of nudity; 
 
which is of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must 
reasonably be assumed tobe provided solely or principally for the 
purpose of sexually stimulating any member ofthe audience 
(whether by verbal or other means). 

 
3.3 The premises is currently granted a licence under the Licensing Act 

2003that permits sexual entertainment. A copy ofthe existing licence is 
enclosed as Appendix 1.  The licence was originally granted on 10th 
March 2006 and amended via a variation 8th September 2009 and a 
minor variation 8th January 2014 in relation to the layout.  Mr Abdul Malik 
has been the licence holder since June 2011 and the Designated 
Premises Supervisor (DPS) since May 2013.  An application was made 
by Abdul Ali to transfer the licence and vary the DPS, but this was 
consequently withdrawn by the applicant. 
 
The licence granted the following licensable activities: 
 
The sale by retail of alcohol:  

• Monday to Sunday from 11:00hrs to 03:30hrs (the following day) 
 
Regulated Entertainment consisting of Recorded Music:  

• Monday to Sunday from 11:00hrs to 03:30hrs (the following day) 
 
Performances of dance, provision of facilities for dancing:  

• Monday to Sunday from 11:00hrs to 03:30hrs (the following day) 
 
The opening hours of the premises: 

• Monday to Sunday from 11:00hrs to 04:00hrs (the following day) 
 
On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue from the end of 
normal permitted hours to the commencement of permitted hours on the 
following day.  

Page 6



 
3.4 In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the Policing and 

Crime Act 2009 (Commencement No. 1 and Transitional and Saving 
Provisions) (England) Order 2010 existing premises licence holders 
under the Licensing Act 2003 can within the 12 month transitional period, 
starting from the date when the adoption of the SEV licensing provisions 
come in to force, submit an application for a SEV licence.  Licence 
holders who were so entitled were informed.  In order to apply in this 
manner, the incumbent premises licence holder under the Licensing Act 
2003 regime must apply, namely Adbul Malik.  Mr Malik and his solicitors 
were made aware of the position. 
 

3.5 The applicantin respect of the Application is City Traders London 
Limited.  A copy of the application is enclosed as Appendix 2. The 
Application is therefore to be treated as an Application by a new 
Applicant, not an existing operator.  
 
 

3.6 The Applicant’s legal representative describes the premises in an email 
dated 17th April 2015 (see Appendix 20) as follows: 
 
“Club Charlie’s Angels is located at 30 Alie Street, London E1 8DA.  
 
Frontage 
The outside of the building is painted black to first floor level with 
exposed brickwork above. All glass frontage is covered in opaque black 
surfaces. An illuminated sign at the top of the premises frontage shows 
“Charlie’s Angels” with the premises logo displayed. To the left and at 
the side of the premises is another illuminated sign showing a woman’s 
face and advertising the club. We appreciate that this sign is 
unacceptable under the new law and we shall remove the sign.  
 
Above the frontage of the premises on the left hand side is a small oval 
shaped side-on sign displaying the premises name “Charlie’s Angels” 
with its logo. There is an illuminated menu box on the front of the 
premises to the right of, but some distance from, the front door which 
displays a summary code of conduct for customers and menu including 
all prices. There is no other advertising.  
 
There is a small area outside at the front of the premises for smokers or 
for those wishing to enjoy a drink outside. There is black granite seating 
along the inner perimeter of this area (right hand side and front), 2 long 
tables and 6 stools. Any performer sitting in this area is always discreetly 
dressed wearing a long coat or long jacket.  This area is screened to a 
height of approximately 3.5 feet. 
 
Entrance and Reception/Cloakroom 
Entrance to the building is via a black, single door which opens into a 
small foyer area with the reception and cloakroom immediately in front. 
To the left on the wall, are signs detailing charges, house rules, the code 

Page 7



of conduct for customers and dancers and that entrance is forbidden to 
those under the age of 18 when sexual entertainment is taking place. 
Before 8pm the door is staffed either by a duty manager, or by a SIA 
registered doorman, or both.  After 8:00pm, the entrance door is staffed 
by one SIA registered doorman. A duty manager will also from time to 
time be present.  
 
The inside of  the venue is divided into 4 areas, the reception/lounge 
area which contains the reception and cloakroom as you enter, with 
seating and tables, down to the Main Seating Area with sofas, tables, the 
main stage, a DJ booth and the bar as shown on the plans 
accompanying the SEV application. There is a VIP dance area on the 
1st floor. More detail is as follows: 
 
 

• Reception/Lounge Area – the Reception/Lounge Area comprises the 
reception area and cloakroom with 5 steps at the rear of this section, 
leading down to the Main Seating Area.  There are 6 bar stools and 3 
high tables. There are also double sofas seating 4 people in total, 2 
single sofas seating 1 person each and 2 coffee tables. No dancing 
takes place in this area. To the right of the Reception/Lounge Area is a 
door leading to the toilets, and VIP Room. To the rear of this front area 
are 5 steps leading down to the Main Seating Area. 
 

• Customer Toilets – the gentleman’s and ladies toilets are both in the 
basement.  
 

• Main Seating Area – the Main Seating Area has a raised stage and a 
DJ booth. The Main Seating Area is appropriately lit, painted a deep 
brown colour and carpeted (red and black). In this area there are 3  x 4 
person high tables, and 2 x 2 person high tables, with a total of 16 high 
stools. In addition there are 10 sofas and 10 tables.   
 

• VIP Dance Area – this is situated on the 1st floor of the premises. This 
consists of a rectangular area with 7 booths, each with faux leather 
seating and coffee table. Each of the private dance booths is decorated 
in dark brown with a 14 inch central border of magnolia and the area is 
carpeted red and black as per the remainder of the premises. Each 
booth has a CCTV Camera. 
 
Club Charlie’s Angels currently trades from 4pm to 4am Monday to 
Friday. The busiest trading periods are on Thursday and Friday 
evenings. Entertainment is provided via performances on the main stage 
and private performances. For performances (pole dances) on the main 
stage, no monies are collected as these are not private dances, but just 
part of the general entertainment available at the premises. 
 
The performer will collect monies under supervision of management 
from the patrons in the Main Seating Area or the Lounge Area before a 
dance is performed. The dances performed will be in the Main Area. The 

Page 8



dance will be routine to the backing track that is playing on the sound 
system, but is not a full nude striptease.  
 
For private performances, the performer will speak directly with the 
patron explaining the tariff to them before taking payment under 
management supervision and escorting them to one of the private dance 
areas in the VIP Room where they perform a fully nude striptease on a 
one-to-one basis. Performers in the main area, giving main stage 
performances and private performances do so in accordance with the 
venue’s code of conduct for performers. 
 
Each table has a drinks menu, tariff and code of conduct displayed for 
patrons to read. These are also placed on the bar, on display.” 
 
This description has been prepared to assist the Committee in absence 
of a site visit to help them in understand the nature of the premises. 
Should the committee have any further questions concerning the layout 
or operation of the premises then they are welcome to direct questions 
to the operator’s legal representative.” 
 

3.7 The application is to permit the premises to operate as a sexual 
entertainment venue with opening hours as follows:   

• Monday to Sunday from 11:00hrs to 04:00hrs (the following day) 
 
 

3.8 The Applicant’s legal representative was written to on 16th February 
2015 to be advised that the application would be treated as new.  A copy 
of that correspondence is contained in Appendix 3. 
 

3.9 A letter dated 23rd December 2014 from the Applicant’s legal 
representative was received by the Licensing Authority on 13th March 
2015.  A copy of that correspondence is contained in Appendix 4. 
 

3.10 City Traders London Limited is registered with Companies House as 
company number: 08756000.  Abdul Malik is the Director.  Details of the 
Companies House registration can be found in Appendix 5. 
 

3.11 Maps of the location of the premises are available in Appendix 6. 
 

3.12 Members should note that the two regimes run concurrently therefore 
the premises licence could effectively run without the SEV in operation, if 
alcohol and regulated entertainment was solely taking place.  
 
 

4.0 Layout of the Premises 
 

4.1 A layout plan of the premises is available in Appendix 7.  The premises 
was visited on 30th March 2015, but upon arrival the Licensing Officer 
was advised that due to a power cut, the CCTV was not operational and 
no recordings could be shown.  A second appointment was made and 

Page 9



attended on 8th April 2015, attended by a Licensing Officer, Mr Abdul 
Malik, the current premises licence holder and Mr Ali Jacko, whom 
identified himself as the Manager.  A checklist of questions was 
completed, a copy of whichis available in Appendix 8 with a copy of a 
price list that was presented at that meeting. 
 
The checklist covered the following points: 

• Whether the interior of the premises is visible from the outside 

• Approved access to dressing rooms 

• External advertising 

• CCTV Coverage 

• Functionality of the CCTV 
 
4.2 In conclusion from that visit, the Licensing Officer was satisfied with the 

CCTV coverage within the premises in relation to the LBTH Standard 
Conditions for SEV premises, most specifically, Condition 13:  
 
CCTV shall be installed to cover the inside and the outside of the 
premises covering all areas to which the public have access, including 
private performance areas and booths, entrances and exits but 
excluding toilets. All cameras shall continually record whilst the premises 
are open to the public and the recorded images shall be kept available 
for a minimum of 31 days Recorded images shall be made available to 
an authorised officer or a police officer together with facilities for viewing. 
The recordings for the preceding two days shall be made available 
immediately on request. Recordings outside this period shall be made 
available on 24 hours’ notice. 
 
The Licensing Officer expressed some concern in relation to the pricing, 
specifically for admission fees.  The pricelist given (and appended with 
the visit checklist),clearly states that there is no admission fees.  
However, the Licensing Officer was advised at that meeting that there 
are in fact entry fees after certain times.  In addition, the pricelist has a 
‘suggested’ fee for a ‘sit-down with a dancer’, which is confusing and 
could potentially be a misleading price indication under consumer 
protection legislation. 
 
It was noted that there is some advertising of the premises on the 
exterior, which Members may wish to consider such suitability to remain. 
 

4.3 Photographs of the premises are available in Appendix 9. 
 
 
5.0 Adverts and Flyers 
 
5.1 The Applicant’s legal advisor has advised the Licensing Authority that 

the premises do not use any advertising such as leaflets to promote the 
premises.  An email confirming this is available in Appendix 10.  
However, Members will note in the previous appendix that the premises 
does have some external advertising at the premises. 

Page 10



 
5.2 The premises has a website available at http://clubcharliesangels.com/ 
 
 
6.0 Standard Conditions 
 
6.1 The Council has adopted Standard Conditions that act as default 

conditions that are attached to all Sexual Entertainment Venue Licences. 
The Standard Conditions are generally considered to be appropriate for 
Sexual Entertainment Venues, with leeway provided for these to be 
varied by Members of the Licensing Sub-committee, or an operator 
applying to vary those conditions to suit individual circumstances.These 
are appended at Appendix 11.  
 

6.2 Members have discretion to modify the standard conditions or add 
appropriate conditions.  Members may wish to consider the application 
of additional conditions in relation to pricing within the venue.  Examples 
of conditions are set out below as a result of consultation with LBTH 
Trading Standards. 
 
Display of comprehensive tariff  
There shall be prominently and legibly displayed a comprehensive tariff 
of all charges and prices, including charges for the company of a 
hostess /dancer/companion and the hire of a room and or a booth (the 
tariff). The tariff shall include the price of all drinks available. 
 
Entrance and reception area 
The tariff shall be prominently and legibly displayed  in such a position 
that it can easily and conveniently be read by customers before paying 
any fee for admission to the premises;   
 
At each bar  
The tariff shall be prominently and legibly displayed  at each bar in the 
premises;  
 
On each Table 
The tariff shall be prominently and legibly displayed  on each table 
 
Room and Booths  
The tariff shall be prominently and legibly displayed  in each room and or 
booth  
 
Tariff drawn attention to customers prior to transaction  
The tariff shall be drawn to the attention of every customer before they 
have paid any fees or charges. 
 
Customer only charged for items on tariff 
No charge shall be made to any customer except for a service and for an 
amount shown on the tariff. 
 

Page 11



Customer made aware of and signs receipt for cost of room and 
booth hire  
No charge shall be made to the customer for any room and booth 
hireunless the customer has signed a receipt having first been made 
aware of the cost. 
 
Customer made aware of the cost of drink provided for to a 
dancer/hostess/companion 
No charge shall be made to the customer for any drink provided for a 
hostess or companion unless the customer has specifically ordered it, 
having first been made aware of the cost.  

 
 
7.0 Codes of Conduct and Policies 

 
7.1 The applicant has provided Codes of Conduct and policies as required 

by the Standard Conditions, which are: 
 

• Code of Conduct for Performers 

• House Rules governing the conduct of customers 
 
See Appendix 12 

 
7.2 During the compliance check visit, it was confirmed that the Code of 

Conduct for Performers was available in the dressing rooms.  It was also 
confirmed that the House Rules was available in the public area of the 
premises. 

 
7.3 If the application is granted subject to the Standard Conditions, the 

codes and policies will have to meet the requirements set out in the 
Standard Conditions.  

 
7.4 Members have discretion to modify the standard conditions or add 

appropriate conditions. 
 

 
8.0 Assessment and information for the vicinity  

 
8.1 Appendix 13 is a map of the Licensing Service’s determination of the 

vicinity around the premises. 
 

8.2 Determination of the “use” of other Premises in the “vicinity” - vicinity” is 
likely to be a narrower and smaller area than the “relevant locality” much 
will depend upon the physical location of the premises, its appearance 
and upon the nature and hours of its operation. 
 

8.3 Below is a list of notable premises within vicinity as observed by 
Licensing Officer visiting the area on foot and using GIS maps: 
 
 

Page 12



Residential 

accommodation 

 

 

The business is over two floors. It is unclear if 
residential is above.  
 
The locality is a mix of residential & business/office 
space.  
 
There are two large housing developments under 
construction Goodmans Fields junction of Alie 
Street/Leman St and & Aldgate Place junction of 
Buckle St/Leman Street 
 
The vicinity is mix of office buildings and residential 
accommodation.  
 
Aside from the new developments, residential 
accommodation is mainly situated West Tenter St; 
North Tenter St; East Tenter St; St Mark St and 
Scarborough Street 
 
Alie Street 

• Flats 1-11,22 Alie Street  

• Flats 1-11, 57 Alie Street 

• 1-23 Lattice House 

• 1-6 Network House 

• Altitude Point, 71 Alie Street (large high-rise 
block of apartments) 

• 1-59 Sterling Mansions, 75 Leman Street 
 

• No. 65 Leman St houses 617 rooms for student 
accommodation 

 

Schools 

 

 

• English Martyrs Catholic Primary School, St 
Mark St 

 

Premises used 

by children and 

vulnerable 

persons 

 

• Job Centre, 83-85 Mansell Street with entrance 
at West Tenter Street 

 
 

Youthcommunity 

and leisure 

centres 

 

• Anytime fitness, 18 Alie Street 

• David Lloyd fitness centre, 1 Alie Street 

• Premier Inn, 66 Alie Street 

• Grange Tower Hotel, 45 Prescott Street 
 

Religious 

centres and 

public places of 

worship 

 

St Georges German Lutheran Church, 55 Alie Street 
Church of English Martyrs, Prescott Street 

Page 13



Access routes to 

and from 

premises listed 

above 

 

The premises sits on the southern side of Alie Street, 
Alie Street joins Mansell Street on western end and 
Leman Street on east.  
These routes are main transport routes to and from 
Central London. 
 
There are a number of bus routes, as well as night 
buses. 
 
Aldgate East Tube Station is a 3 minute walk away 
with Aldgate station and Tower Hill stations also 
nearby  
 

Existing licensed 

premises in the 

vicinity 

 

 

Leman Street 
 

• Public House: Oliver Conquest, 70 Leman 
Street, E1 8EU 

 

• Supermarket: Sainsbury, Unit 2, Southwest 
Block, Goodman’s Fields, Leman Street, E1 
8EJ 

 

• Bar and Restaurant: The Old Dispensary, 19a 
Leman Street, E1 8EN 

 

• Public House: Black Horse PH, 40 Leman St, 
E1 8EU 

 

• SEV: Whites, 32-38 Leman Street E1 8EW 
 

Alie Street 
 

• Public House: White Swan, 21 Alie Street, E1 
8DA 

 

• Hotel: Thyme (Premier Inn), Goodmans Fields, 
Alie Street, E1 8DE 

 

St Mark Street 
 

• Restaurant: Halal Restaurant, 2 St Mark Street, 
E1 8DJ 

 

• Supermarket: City Food Store, 8 St Mark St, E1 
8DJ 

 

Mansell Street 
 

• Supermarket: Sainsbury, 27 Mansell Street, E1 
8AA 

 

Page 14



 
 

9.0 Assessment and information for the Locality   
 

9.1 Appendix 14contains the Ward Profile of Whitechapel to provide 
members with details in relation to the locality of the premise. 
 

9.2 What is the “relevant locality” in respect of the current application? The 
area has been assessed to have commercial character.  
 

• The relevant locality was assessed as being within a 100 metre radius 
centred on the premises, 30 Alie Street.  

 

• The premises sits close to the A1202 (Leman Street) to the East, which 
junctions with Commercial Road and Whitechapel High Street which 
are red routes and sit on one of the main routes into Central London 
and out to the East. To the West is the A1211 (Mansell Street) which 
leads to Tower Bridge in the South and A major Aldgate junction in the 
North. 
 

• The vicinity is a mix of commercial and residential accommodation 
 

9.3 What is the “character” of the relevant locality in respect of the current 
application?  The area has been assessed to have a mixed residential 
and commercial character with about 5.8% of the Borough’s residents  
 

• The premises is in Whitechapel Ward. 
 

• The Ward Profiles downloaded from the Council’s website are 
appended. 

 

• The Ward abuts the City of London.  The area is mixed 
residential/commercial and has around 5.8% of Borough’s resident 
population.   

 
 
10.0 Other Sexual Entertainment Venues 

 
10.1 The following premises have applied for Sexual Entertainment Venues 

under the new licensing Regime 
 

Charlie’s Angels 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA 
 

Metropolis 234 Cambridge Heath Road, London, E2 
9NN 
 

Nags Head 17-19 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 
1DU 
 

Whites Gentleman’s Club 32-38 Leman Street, London, E1 8EW 

Page 15



 
White Swan 556 Commercial Road, London, E14 7JD 

 
 
11.0 Consultation 
 
11.1 The application has been consulted on in accordance with the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) and the 
Tower Hamlets Sexual Entertainment Policy. 

 
This has included: 
 
a) A site notice at the premises displayed by the applicant during the 
required period.  A copy of the notice is appended as Appendix 15. 
 
b) A press advert was placed in the Docklands and East London 
Advertiseron the 4th December 2014 by the Applicant, which is 
appended as Appendix 16. 

 
11.2 The following is a list of those also consulted in regards to the 

application: 
 

• The Police 

• The Fire Brigade 

• Building Control 

• Health and Safety 

• Ward Councillors 

• Development Control Team 

• Local residents living within 50m of the premises 
 
 
12.0 Responses to the Consultation 

 
12.1 The Police were consulted,please find below a summary of their 

comments. 

• None 
 

12.2 The Fire Brigade were consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments. 

• None 
 

12.3 The Council expects the premises to have planning consent for the 
intended use and hours of operation, or otherwise have lawful planning 
status before making anapplication for a new licence.  Building Control 
were consulted, please find below a summary of their comments. 

• None, therefore it is assumed that all planning permissions are 
acceptable. 

 

Page 16



12.4 Health and Safetywere consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments. 

• None 
 

12.5 Ward Councillorswere consulted, please find below a summary of their 
comments, seeAppendix 17. 

• Cllr Abdul Asad and Cllr Aminur Khan have made representation 
to two SEV venues within the Whitechapel Ward. 
 

• They have concerns regarding the effect that these venue may 
have on the local area; additionally, many residents in the 
surrounding areas - in particular Scarborough Street, Gowers 
Walk, Mansell Street and Alie Street, had voiced their concerns, 
especially with its proximity to Harry Gosling Primary School and 
English Martyrs Catholic Primary school. 

 
12.6 Development Control Teamwere consulted, please find below a 

summary of their comments. 

• None 
 
 

13.0 Local Residents  
 

13.1 Local residents living within 50m of the premiseswere consulted, please 
find below a summary of their comments (redacted copies of the 
representations are available in Appendix 18).  In summary, objectors 
have stated the following: 
 

• There are issues with noise directly from the premises and from 
patrons arriving and departing on foot and in cars; 

• There are issues with refuse disposal; 

• A belief that drugs are being sold to a member of staff at the rear 
of the premises; 

• Public urination by patrons entering and departing the premises 
and by taxi drivers serving those patrons; 

• Patrons having sex in the locality; 

• That the nature of the business is no longer appropriate to its 
location; 

• The premises location in proximity to a local school. 
 

13.2 A person making a representation must clearly state their name, 
address, and thegrounds for objecting to the application and indicate 
whether they consent to have their name and address revealed to the 
applicant.  All objectors for this application asked not to have their 
names and addresses revealed to the Applicant. Copies of redacted 
representations were available to the applicant prior to the publication of 
this report. 
 

Page 17



13.3 The Council will not consider objections that are frivolous or vexatious or 
which relate to moral grounds (as these are outside the scope of the 
Act). All the representations received have been included in this report; 
Members may wish to assess the validity of the content of each 
objection.  
 

13.4 Late representations may be admissible at the discretion of the Council if 
there’ssufficient reason to indicate that applicants will not be significantly 
prejudiced by thedecision to allow a late objection to be considered. In 
making such a decision theCouncil will take into account: 

•  the length of the delay; 

•  the amount of time that the applicant has to consider the 
representation before the hearing date; 

•  if other representations have been received before the deadline. 

 

 

14.0 Summary of Premises and Licence History 
 
14.1 A copy of the existing premises licence is available in Appendix 1. 

 
14.2 The current licence holder is: Mr Abdul Malik. 

 
14.3 The current Designated Premises Supervisor is: Mr Abdul Malik. 
 
 
15.0 Complaints and Enforcement History 

 
15.1 The premises has received the following complaints in the last 24 

months: 
 

Date Complainant Nature of Complaint 
 

07/01/2014 Public Complaint that the premises licence holder 
and owners are a limited company (Traders 
City Ltd.) that had gone into liquidation, 
therefore voiding the licence.  Claim that a 
credit card had been fraudulently used by 
the company. 
The complainant was advised that the 
premises licence holder was Mr Abdul 
Malik and therefore the licence was not 
void, however, the claim would be 
investigated.  The premises was visited 
20/01/2014; no issues were found. Advice 
was given in referring a fraud claim to the 
Police. 
 

21/08/2014 Anonymous 
Local 
Resident(online 

Complaint of noise from patrons arriving 
and leaving from the premises and from 
taxis running their engines outside. 

Page 18



form) 
 

18/02/2015 Local Resident Complaint of noise from the premises.  
Noise from bottles being emptied.  Public 
sex between a patron and a staff member.  
Public urination by patrons. 

 
15.2 The premises has received the following visits by the Local Authority in 

the last 24 months: 
 

Date Authority 
(TS/Lic) 
 

Nature of visit 

08/03/2013 Licensing  Premises Inspection: Neither premises 
licence holder nor designated premises 
supervisor were present.  The Manager in 
charge of the premises was unable to 
produce a copy of the premises licence.  A 
warning letter was sent on 11/03/2013 
 

13/12/2013 Licensing 
and Police 

Operation Condor: Premises inspection 
with Police, CCTV was not operational and 
no drinks prices were on display as 
required under the Operating Schedule of 
the Licence. A S.19 Closure Notice was 
issued by the Police, giving the PLH 7 days 
to rectify the breaches.  Warning letter also 
sent 18/12/2013 by Licensing Authority.  
The issues were resolved to the satisfaction 
of the Police 
 

20/01/2014 Licensing  Visit by Licensing Officer in relation to 
complaint that owners had gone into 
liquidation; proved to be unfounded in 
relation to the licence. 
 

08/12/2014 Licensing SEV Application Notice check 
 

 
 
15.3 The premises has been subject to the following enforcement actions in 

the last 24 months: 
 
 

Date Authority 
(TS/Lic) 
 

Nature of Enforcement 

13/12/2013 Licensing 
and Police 

Operation Condor: Premises inspection 
with Police, CCTV was not operational and 
no drinks prices were on display as 

Page 19



required under the Operating Schedule of 
the Licence. A S.19 Closure Notice was 
issued by the Police, giving the PLH 7 days 
to rectify the breaches.  Warning letter also 
sent 18/12/2013 by Licensing Authority 
therefore no prosecution sought.  The 
issues were resolved to the satisfaction of 
the Police 
 

 
 
16.0 Policy - Appropriate Number of Sexual Entertainment Venues 

 
16.1 The Council has determined that there are a sufficient number of sex 

shops, sex cinemas and sexual entertainment venues currently 
operating in the borough and it does not want to see an increase in the 
numbers of premises that are currently providing these activities. 
 

16.2 The Council has adopted a policy to limit the number of sexual 
entertainment venues in the borough to nil however it recognises that 
there are a number of businesses that have been providing sexual 
entertainment in Tower Hamlets for several years. The Council will not 
apply this limitation when considering applications for premises that were 
already trading with express permission for the type of entertainment 
which is now defined as sexual entertainment on the date that the 
licensing provisions were adopted by the authority if they can 
demonstrate in their application: 
 

• High standards of management; 

• A management structure and capacity to operate the venue; 

• The ability to adhere to the standard conditions for sex 
establishments. 

 
16.3 The Council will consider each application on its merit.  This Application 

is to be treated as a new application andthe new Applicant will have to 
demonstrate why the Council should depart from its policy. Furthermore 
if any of the existing premises cease trading there is no presumption that 
the Council will consider any new applications more favourably. 
 
 

17.0 Home Office Guidance 
 

17.1 The Home Office issued guidance to local authorities in March 2010 to 
assist local authorities in carrying out their functions under the Act.  
 

17.2 The Council can refuse applications on grounds related to an 
assessment of the relevant locality. A licence can be refused if either, at 
the time the application is determined the number of Sexual 
Entertainment Venues, or Sexual Entertainment Venues of a particular 
kind, in the relevant locality is equal to or exceeds the number that the 

Page 20



authority considers appropriate for that locality; or that a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue would be inappropriate having regard to the 
character of the relevant locality, the use to which any premises in the 
vicinity are put or the layout, character or condition of the premises. Nil 
may be the appropriate number. 
 

17.3 The decision regarding what constitutes the ‘relevant locality’ is a matter 
for the Council. However, such questions must be decided on the facts 
of the individual application. 
 

17.4 Once the Council has determined the relevant locality, it should seek to 
make an assessment of the ‘character’ of the relevant locality and how 
many, if any, Sexual Entertainment Venues, or Sexual Entertainment 
Venues of a particular kind, it considers appropriate for that relevant 
locality. 

 
 
18.0 Licence Conditions 

 
18.1 Once the Council has decided to grant a licence they are able to impose 

terms, conditions and restrictions on that licence, either in the form of 
conditions specific to the individual licence under paragraph 8 of 
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982, or standard conditions applicable to all Sexual Entertainment 
Venues, or particular types of Sexual Entertainment Venues. 
 

18.2 Where the Council decides to produce standard conditions under 
paragraph 13 they will apply to every licence granted, renewed or 
transferred by the authority unless they have been expressly excluded or 
varied. 
 

18.3 Most sexual entertainment venues will require a Licensing Act 2003 
licence as well as a Sexual Entertainment Venue licence. Where this is 
the case, local authorities should avoid duplicating licence conditions 
and should ensure that conditions imposed on the each licence are 
relevant to the activities authorised by that licence. For example, 
conditions relating to the sale of alcohol should only appear on a 
premises licences or clubs premises certificate and should not be 
imposed on sexual entertainment venue licence. Likewise, conditions 
relating the provisions of relevant entertainment should appear on the 
sexual entertainment venue licence and not a premises licence or club 
premises certificate. Local authorities should also avoid imposing 
conditions on either licence that are contradictory. 
 

18.4 In many cases licences granted under the 2003 Act to existing operators 
will contain conditions that relate expressly and exclusively to the 
provision of relevant entertainment. Such a condition might prohibit 
contact between a performer and customer during a lap dance. In these 
cases, in order to avoid duplication, where conditions on premises 
licences or club premises certificates relate only to the provision of 

Page 21



relevant entertainment, they shall be read as if they were deleted from 
the 3rd appointed day onwards. 
 

18.5 In cases where conditions on a premises licence or clubs premises 
certificate are inconsistent with, and less onerous than, the conditions in 
the licence granted under the 1982 Act they shall likewise be read as 
though they have been deleted. 
 
 

19.0 Sexual Entertainment Venues and Determination 
 

19.1 Tower Hamlets Licensing Authority has received advice in relation tothe 
determination of an application, Members would be wise to take a ten-
point approach and provide answers to the following: 
 
1. Determine the extent, nature and content of the “Relevant 
 Entertainment” 
 
2. Consider the Mandatory Grounds of refusal – are these engaged?  
 
3. Discretionary Grounds (Internal): the ‘people’: Consider the 
 suitability of the Applicant and other persons involved; are they 
 suitable to hold and operate a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
 licence? 
 
4. Discretionary Grounds (Internal): the ‘premises’: Consider the 
 suitability of the premises for a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
 licence; is the premises suitable for the operation of the proposed 
 relevant entertainment? 
 
5. Discretionary Grounds (External):  What is the “vicinity” in respect 
 of the current application? 
 
6. Discretionary Grounds (External): What are the uses of other 
 premises in the vicinity in respect of the current application? 
 
7. Discretionary Grounds (External): What is the “relevant locality” in 
 respect of the current application? 
 
8. Discretionary Grounds (External): What is the “character” of the 
 relevant locality in respect of the current application? 
 
9. Is a Sexual Entertainment Venue of the type contemplated in the 
 application appropriate having regard to (i) the premises; (ii) the 
 character of the relevant locality and (iii) the use of premises in 
 the vicinity? 
 
10.a     Discretionary Grounds (External): What is the appropriate 
 number – regardless of the LBTH/Policy Presumption – of Sexual 

Page 22



 Entertainment Venues (collectively & by type) in the relevant 
 locality of the current application? 
 
10.b     Is the LBTH/Policy engaged by the current application? (b) 
 Where the LBTH/Policy is engaged has the applicant established 
 that the current application is an exception to that policy?   
 

19.2 A copy of LBTH Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy is produced in 
Appendix 19 for Member’s information. 

 
 
20.0 Legal Comments 

 
20.1 The Council may refuse an application for the grant or renewal of a 

licence on one ormore of the grounds specified below (Schedule 3 para 
12(1) Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1982 (‘the Act’), 
as amended by reg. 47(4), Provision of Services Regulations 2009): 
 

20.2 The mandatorygrounds for refusal are as follows: 
(a)  the applicant is under the age of 18; 
(b)  that the applicant is for the time being disqualified from holding 

alicence; 
(c)  that the person is a person other than a body corporate, who is 

notresident in the U.K. or was not resident in the U.K. throughout 
the sixmonths preceding the date of the application; 

(d)  that the applicant is a body corporate which is not incorporated in 
theU.K; or 

(e)  that the applicant has been refused a sex establishment licence 
forthe premises within the twelve months preceding the date of 
theapplication and the refusal has not been reversed on appeal. 

 
20.3 The Committee has discretion to refuse the application if any of 

thefollowing grounds for refusal apply under para. 12(3) of Schedule 3 
ofthe Act. 
 
The discretionary grounds for refusal are as follows: 
(a)  the applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence by reason of having 

beenconvicted of an offence or for any other reason; 
(b)  that if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred, 

thebusiness to which it relates would be managed by or carried on 
for thebenefit of a person other than the applicant who would have 
beenrefused a licence if they had applied themselves; 

(c)  the number of sex establishments exceeds the number or is equal 
tothe number which the council consider is appropriate for that 
locality;or 

(d)  the grant or renewal of licence would be inappropriate because of: 
 i.  the character of the relevant locality; 
 ii.  the use to which the premises in the vicinity are put; or 
 iii.  the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, 

vesselor stall. 

Page 23



 
 (In relation to premises, ‘the relevant locality’ means the locality 

where thepremises are situated). 
 
20.4 There is a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court, as set out in para. 27 

ofSchedule 3 of the Act. An appeal against the decision of a Magistrates’ 
Courtmay be brought to the Crown Court. In addition, the decision of the 
Committeemay be appealed on established public law principles. 

 
20.5 The Committee should only consider those comments within the letters 

ofobjection or made orally at the hearing which are relevant to the 
mandatory ordiscretionary grounds for refusal. Comments contained 
within the letters ofobjection or orally at the hearing which relate to moral 
grounds, for example,must not be considered by the Committee. 
 

20.6 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the Hearing. 
 

 
21.0 Finance Comments 

 
21.1 There are no direct financial implications arising directly from the report. 

However, there are possible cost implications if the Decision was 
appealed to the Magistrates’ Court, Crown Court or if a Judicial Review 
was lodged. Licence fees are expected to cover the cost of 
administration and compliance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
22.0 Appendices 

Page 24



 
Appendix 1 A copy ofthe existing licence 

 
Appendix 2 A copy of the application 

 
Appendix 3 Copy correspondence to Applicant’s legal representative 

dated 16th February 2015 
 

Appendix 4 Copy correspondence dated 23rd December 2014 from the 
Applicant’s legal representative, received by the Licensing 
Authority on 13th March 2015 
 

Appendix 5 Companies House information for City Traders London 
Limited  
 

Appendix 6 Maps of the location of the premises 
 

Appendix 7 Plans of the premises 
 

Appendix 8 Compliance Visit Checklist 
 

Appendix 9 Photographs of the premises 
 

Appendix 10 Email confirming the premises non-use of adverts and 
flyers  
 

Appendix 11 LBTH Standard Conditions list 
 

Appendix 12 Premises Code of Conduct and House Rules 
 

Appendix 13 Vicinity Map 
 

Appendix 14 Ward Profile 
 

Appendix 15 Copy of Site Notice 
 

Appendix 16 Copy of Press Advert 
 

Appendix 17 Representations by Cllr Abdul Asad and Cllr Aminur Khan 
 

Appendix 18 Representations by Local Residents  
 

Appendix 19 Copy of LBTH SEV Policy 
 

Appendix 20 Email from Applicant’s legal representative giving a 
description of the premises 

 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Page 27



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 1

See the attached licence for the licence conditions 

Signed by John McCrohan
Trading Standards and Licensing Manager 

Date: 10th March 2006 

Varied 8
th

 September 2009
Minor Variation (layout) 8

th
 January 2014

(Charlie’s Angels)
30 Alie Street
London

E1 8DA

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence

The sale by retail of alcohol
The provision of regulated entertainment 

Page 28



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 2

Part A - Format of premises licence

Premises licence number 17717

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 

(Charlie’s Angels)
30 Alie Street

Post town 

London

Post code 

E1 8DA

Telephone number 

None

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

The sale by retail of alcohol
The provision of regulated entertainment 

Page 29



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 3

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

The sale by retail of alcohol:
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 11:00
hours to 03:30 hours the following day

Regulated Entertainment consisting of:
Recorded Music:
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 11:00
hours to 03:30 hours the following day

Performances of dance, provision of facilities for dancing:
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 
hours to 03:30 hours the following day.

On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue from the end of normal 
permitted hours to the commencement of permitted hours on the following day.

The opening hours of the premises

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 11:00
hours to 04:00 hours the following day.

On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue from the end of normal 
permitted hours to the commencement of permitted hours on the following day.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or 
off supplies

On sales only

Page 30



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 4

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of 
holder of premises licence 

Mr Abdul Malik
6 North Tenter Street
London
E1 8DL

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable)

Not applicable

Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Abdul Malik

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol

Licence Number: 14944
Issuing Authority: London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Page 31



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 5

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 

a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised 
by a person who holds a personal licence  

Security 
Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or 
more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, such 
individuals must be licensed with the Security Industry Authority. 
This does not apply to premises within paragraph. 8(3) (a) of Schedule 2 to the 
Private Security Industry Act 2001, (premises with premises licences authorising 
plays or films), or 
in respect of premises in relation to- 
any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of Schedule 2 (premises 
being used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary 
event notice authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence), or  
any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of Schedule 2 (occasions prescribed by 
regulations under that Act) unless the Licence specifically states otherwise. 

Security activity means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of Schedule 2 of 
the Private Security Industry Act 2001 of that schedule applies, and 
Paragraph 8(5) of  Schedule 2 (interpreting of references to an occasion) applies 
as it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of Schedule 2 of the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001  

1.

(1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that 
staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in 
any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more 
of the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on 
for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant 
risk of leading or contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public 
safety, public nuisance, or harm to children–

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are 
designed to require or encourage, individuals to; 

Page 32



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 6

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation
of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to 
sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for 
a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a 
particular characteristic (other than any promotion or discount 
available to an individual in respect of alcohol for consumption at a 
table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act);  

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize 
to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol 
over a period of 24 hours or less; 

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on 
the premises of a sporting event, where that provision is dependent 
on;

(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or 

(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring; 

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters 
or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably 
be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social 
behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner. 

2. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by
one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is
unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

3. The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on
request to customers where it is reasonably available.

4.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall 
ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises in 
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible 
person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be 
specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 

Page 33



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 7

alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a 
holographic mark. 

5. The responsible person shall ensure that;

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or 
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply 
in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures–

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and 

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures. 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 

Conditions Agreed with the Metropolitan Police 

1. All references to striptease in these conditions shall be deemed to apply to
all forms of striptease or nudity by male or female performers.

2. At least one Personal Licence Holder shall remain on the premises at all
times during licensed hours when the premises are open and trading.

3. At least four SIA registered Door Supervisors will remain on the premises at
all times during licensed hours when the premises are being used as a table
dancing venue.  This number may be reduced to two before 20 00 hrs.

4. The Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) will ensure that at least one
member of staff with specific obligation to ensure compliance with the
performers/dancers code of conduct, will be present at all times when the
premises are open for striptease, table or pole dancing.

5. CCTV with time and date recording facility to be installed and maintained at
the club in accordance with the advice of a Metropolitan Police Crime
Prevention Officer. Recording media to be retained for at least 30 days and
to be readily available for inspection by the Police or other statutory
authority. At least two people will be trained to operate the recording
equipment and be competent in its operation. A least one trained person
shall be on premises at all times when the club is open and trading.

Page 34



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 8

6. A Code of Conduct for Performers/Dancers to be lodged with the Police and
Licensing Authority. All Performers/Dancers must sign the code of conduct
as agreed by the Police in their proper name acknowledging they have read
and understood, and are prepared to abide by the said Code of Conduct
and copies so signed should be retained by the DPS and be readily
available for inspection by the Police and Licensing Authority. Any breach of
the agreed code of conduct shall constitute a breach of condition.

7. Details of all work permits and/or immigration status relating to persons
working at the Oops Club shall be retained by the DPS and be readily
available for inspection by Police or Immigration Officer.

8. Menus and drinks’ price-lists shall be clearly displayed at the front entrance,
reception and bar in such a position and size as to be easily read by
customers. This price list should show all consumable items and any
minimum tariff including charges or fees applicable to hostesses. The
menus and drinks price-lists will also be on all tables.

9. A permanent written record will be maintained in the form of a refusals book
kept at the club. This record will be signed by the DPS/Manager on a daily
basis and record the details of any customer who refuses to pay his/her bill
giving details of the customer’s name, contact details and a detailed copy of
the bill. This is to be available to the Police and/or Licensing Authority on
demand.

10. A record will be kept at the club of the real names, addresses, stage names
of all the hostesses/dancers, which will be readily available to any Police
Officer and/or the Licensing Authority.

11. A notice outlining a Code of Conduct for the customer shall be positioned at
the entrance, reception and bar area. It shall be of an adequate size and in
such a position where it can be easily read and understood by the
customer.

12. All hostess activity shall be conducted openly and at no time shall
hostesses entertain customers in areas of the premises that are screened
or curtained off from the view of the DPS (or other person acting with
equivalent authority).

13. An incident book will be maintained at the premises. Upon request, it will be
readily available for inspection by the police or other Licensing Authority.

14. There shall be no soliciting for custom by means of persons on the highway
or any payment made to them by or on behalf of the DPS.

Page 35



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 9

15. Whilst striptease is taking place no person under the age of 18 shall be
allowed on any part of the premises and a notice shall be displayed in clear
terms at each entrance that:-

NO PERSON UNDER 18 TO BE PERMITTED 

16. On any day when the premises are open for entertainment not involving
striptease, prior to striptease becoming available, a notice shall be
prominently displayed in a conspicuous position on the premises.  This
should be displayed at least one hour before striptease performances are
due to start, advising customers when those performances are to
commence.

17. The striptease entertainment shall be given only by paid
performers/entertainers who are engaged exclusively for that purpose.

18. There shall be no physical participation by the audience and no contact
between the performer/dancer and any of the audience during
performances. There shall be no physical contact between the
performers/Dancers.

19. There shall be no striptease performance to customers seated at the bar, or
to standing customers.  Performers/Dancers shall only perform on the
designated stages, designated podiums or to seated customers at a table.

20. On each of the designated stages, there shall be no more than two
performers at any one time.

21. The VIP area on the ground floor will be under constant supervision by
either the DPS or a Door Supervisor.  This is to ensure the safety of the
Performers/Dancers and to ensure they are complying with their code of
conduct.

22. Any performance will be restricted to dancing and the removal of clothes,
there must not be any other form of sexual activity.

23. All striptease shall take place in an area which is not visible from the street
or overlooking buildings.

24. The Performers/Dancers shall be provided with a changing room which
must be separate and apart from public facilities.

25. There shall be no sexually explicit external advertising likely to cause
offence as to the nature of the activity being held at the premises.

Conditions agreed with Environmental Health Officer: 

Page 36



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 10

26. First Floor: The door from the smaller VIP penthouse area to the flat roof
does not lead to a place of safety and may not be designated as a fire exit.
The door shall be provided with a security lock to prevent unauthorised use.

27. The door from the first floor leading to the upper storeys should have a
security lock to prevent unauthorised access to the upper storeys, which are
not part of the licensed premises.  A sign marked “PRIVATE” will be
provided on the door.

28. Ground Floor:  All exit doors from the ground floor at the front of the
premises shall open in the direction of escape.

29. The double doors separating the customer seating area from the private
dance area also provide an alternative escape from the ground floor and
these shall be hung to open in the direction of escape.

30. An additional fire alarm call point will be provided next to the door giving exit
to Alie Street from the enclosed staircase.

31. The door attached to the reception desk be hung to open in the direction of
escape (or may be double-swing).

32. All exit signs to be “maintained” fittings, illuminated by both mains and
emergency lighting.

33. All external windows should be obscured to prevent persons outside from
seeing entertainment of an adult nature, e.g., striptease, pole dancing or lap
dancing.

34. The external advertising to the frontage of the premises shall be limited to
that shown on Drawing “Oops 1” attached to this Licence.

35. The Rules of Management (a copy of which are annexed to this Licence
marked “Oops 2” are required to comply with the requirements of the
Licensing Authority’s Licensing Policy.

Conditions agreed with the Fire Service: 

36. A fire alarm with smoke detection in accordance with BS5839 Part 1 (L2)
system.

37. Emergency lighting in accordance with BS5266.

38. Stairway from basement to first floor to conform to a protected stairway,
with all walls and doors or 300 mm fire resistance.

Page 37



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 11

39. Kitchen to be enclosed in 30 mm fire resistant construction.

40. Fire-fighting equipment and fire signage should be in accordance with
current British Standard.

41. The safe capacity of the premises is to be as agreed with the Fire Authority.

42. Details of evacuation procedure to be made available to the Fire Authority.

External area: 

43. The external area to the front of the premises in Alie Street shall be
delineated and set out as per the Drawings in “Oops 1” attached hereto.
The external area to the front of the premises in Alie Street shall not be
used at any time for the provision of regulated entertainment and for the
sale of retail alcohol after 23.00.

Children: 

44. Any advertising or promotion at, on or in the premises for entertainment,
services or activities of an adult nature (and in particular striptease, table
dancing and pole dancing) shall be appropriate for all ages to see if or when
attending the premises at any time when such adult entertainment, services
and activities are not provided.

Annexe 3: Conditions agreed at Committee Hearing for variation on 8th

September 2009 

1. Noise limiters are to be employed in a separate and remote (from the
volume control) lockable cabinet and fitted to the music amplification
system.

2. No supplementary sound system to be used.

Annex 4 – Plans 

The Plans are those Plans submitted to the Licensing Authority on 20th

December 2013 (Ground, First and Second floors – Drawing No: 156 A001 rev2).

Page 38



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 12

Part B - Premises licence summary

Premises licence number 17717

Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 

(Charlie’s Angels)
30 Alie Street

Post town 

London

Post code

E1 8DA

Telephone number 

None

Where the licence is 
time limited the dates

Not applicable

Licensable activities 
authorised by the 
licence 

The sale by retail of alcohol
The provision of regulated entertainment 

The times the licence 
authorises the 
carrying out of 
licensable activities

The sale by retail of alcohol:
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 hours to 03:30 hours the 
following day

Regulated Entertainment consisting of:
Recorded Music:

Licensing Act 2003

Page 39



M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\AlieSt30.doc 13

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 hours to 03:30 hours the
following day

Performances of dance, provision of facilities for 
dancing:
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 hours to 03:30 hours the 
following day.

On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue 
from the end of normal permitted hours to the 
commencement of permitted hours on the following day.

The opening hours of 
the premises

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sunday from 11:00 hours to 04:00 hours the 
following day.

On New Year’s Eve all licensable activities may continue 
from the end of normal permitted hours to the 
commencement of permitted hours on the following day.

Name, (registered) address  of holder of 
premises licence

Mr Abdul Malik
6 North Tenter Street
London
E1 8DL

Where the licence authorises supplies of 
alcohol whether these are on and / or off 
supplies

On sales only

Registered number of holder, for example 
company number, charity number (where 
applicable)

Not applicable

Name of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises for 
the supply of alcohol

Abdul Malik

State whether access to the premises by 
children is restricted or prohibited

Prohibited

Page 40



Appendix 2

Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Appendix

Page 59



Corporate Director 
Communities, Localities & Culture 

Stephen Halsey 

Ms M Guida 

Fletcher Day 

Queensland House 

393 Strand 

London 

WC2R 0LT 

Date:  16th February 2015  

Your reference: 81085 
My reference: MEG\CIT0041 

Communities, Localities & Culture
Safer Communities 

Head of Consumer and Business Regulations
David Tolley 

Licensing Section 
Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent 
London E14 2BG 

www.towerhamlets.gov.uk

Dear Ms Guida, 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions Act) 1982 

Re: Charlies Angels – 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA 

Further to receipt of your clients application on 1st December 2014 for a Sexual 
Entertainment Licence, it was noted that the applicant was denoted as ‘London City 
Traders Ltd.’.  This is not the incumbent licence holder for the existing licence in place at 
30 Alie Street, rather this is Mr Abdul Malik.   

Article 6 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 (Commencement No 1 and Transitional and 
Saving Provisions) (England) Order 2010 permits applications from existing operators only. 
City Traders London Ltd is not an existing operator. For this reason the application will be 
treated as an application by a new operator. 

The transitional provisions provide a clear statutory scheme and clear statutory timetable 
from the transition of the seemingly permissive regime of the Licensing Act 2003 to the 
prescriptive regime of the 1982 Act. The London Borough of Tower Hamlets had 
forewarned existing business to prepare for the regime change. There are no provisions 
allowing for a slip rule or amendment of applications after the event.  A change from City 
Traders London Ltd to Abdul Malik is not a correction or amendment of clerical errors but is 
a substitution of one applicant with another – it is an entirely new application; one that 
would consequently be outside the relevant transitional window. 

We are of the view that allowing such a late amendment is contrary to the London Borough 
of Tower Hamlets Sex Establishment Policy which seeks to promote and ensure 
transparency and consistency in decision making – this is consistent with decision making 

Page 60



Corporate Director 
Communities, Localities & Culture 

Stephen Halsey 

under the Provision of Services Regulations 2009. 

Furthermore giving your client the benefit of the doubt undermines the stated policy goal to 
‘limit the number of sexual entertainment venues in the Borough’. 

Your client has been advised by the policy that his premises could be affected, he has had 
at least six months to ready a response / application. He has also had the benefit of legal 
advice and assistance. Although this now falls to be considered as a new applicant, Mr 
Abdul Malik’s experience at running this venue would be relevant to the consideration of 
the application.  

Yours sincerely, 

Andrew Heron 
Licensing Officer 

Page 61



Appendix

Page 62



Page 63



Appendix

Page 64



����������	
�����	�


���
���������������������������

����������	

����	�


������������	�

�����


����

��������	�������

���������	�������

��������

������������

���������������

����������������������

�������������������	�

�����
��	���������������

 �����

�����

�����������

����������

!�"��

�����	�

�������������

�����������������

#����$���������� ��������

#���

�������%�&��

�'�����

�'������

��������������������	

�������(������ )�)�����

��������� !�"����#$$!����

� #*�#+
(�+��%�!(�!�%#(�

��%��#�&#����#'��

&#�(�)�*')(�

+#��#��

(�*+'���

(,�%-'�

�������!�,�-./01---�

������2�'�"!.��

(������� ����������2����#�"������

�������������$�2�/
!"���0!
 ����

�������#���2�1!.�"��+!�!"������2�
��

!���������3�������4� �4-5662�

��
���322�!���


������$�+��������(���2����#�"�

%����
���������������#�2�4�#�'��#/�)��&5+(�6�

!����
�������(��2�����3�����7�

%����+�������������#�2��

!����+�����(��2��8���.������

Page 1 of 2ts interlink - 03 Dec 2014

03/12/2014https://secure.tslinkonline.co.uk/templates/search/companyhouse-results.cfm?Request...

Page 65



���������!����2�

���2�.!�3��
����!
$���"!�
�	������
���������.��"	�����"��������9�

7��"��������
����������������%����

7��"��������8���$���������

��2�! 	"�:�!"���+!�!"���

�����

#�����9����������;�

���������������;��������

�����%������

"���������"
4�	6

"���<���
!
 �
����� �

1�""�
�
'22�.���

Page 2 of 2ts interlink - 03 Dec 2014

03/12/2014https://secure.tslinkonline.co.uk/templates/search/companyhouse-results.cfm?Request...

Page 66



���������	
�� �������� �������� ���������� ���������� ������������

����������	
��

����������� ������  ��! � �"#� !�������$�! �

%�&��'��(����)�*
����

%��������!
������'��
��$�+��!,�+

����������

-��
���

����������������

����.

�����.

��������������/

���������������/

�������/

�����������.

 ��!�����������/

"
������������������/

"#!���$������������/

����������������%���/

� ���/

����/

���������/

��������/

&�'�/

������/

��%�������/

"#��������������.

(�����)����������������/

(��/


���������*�/


��"  /


��"  �/

�!!�����������������

+�+����*�

����	��������	��
��	����
� �(,�(-�	"-����&	�&��(	�

��)����.�/�

��)����.�/�

*���
	0���1�	����	'	����

�$�+�

(�����0� ���������2�

���������������2� �����

����������

���
������
3��4

����&��
�	�0�
��&&�0�

�����
��
���
�5�&

Page 1 of 2ts interlink - 03 Dec 2014

03/12/2014https://secure.tslinkonline.co.uk/templates/companiesHouse/company-officer-list.cfm...

Page 67



����������	
�����	�


���
���������������������������

����������	

����	�


������������	�

�����


����

��������	�������

���������	�������

��������

������������

���������������

����������������������

�������������������	�

�����
��	���������������

 �����

�����

�����������

����������

!�"��

�����	�

�������������

�����������������

#����$���������� ��������

#���

�������%�&��

�'�����

�'������

��������(������

)�)�*��&�

�����������$�� ��$���+�,�

������- ��� !

.������- �"�#��

�������
������- ��$ %&��'((�)&�

�*�%&*��+#�,&�

�'%�'%�

#% (&��! %)�'��

&���&-�

(�������*���	- �.������/0�

!����������������
���������- �

!���������(���������
���������- �

!���������/���$���
���������- �

���1�
��%�2 ���1�
���3�34� �1132�(�1� �1132���3� �1132�,��56
�35�
���3� '��41�35�


' ���#��% � #�(

�7//7.�. ��358� � , ���������� � ,&�(',

���������%#(

Page 1 of 2ts interlink - 03 Dec 2014

03/12/2014https://secure.tslinkonline.co.uk/templates/companiesHouse/company-officer-details.c...

Page 68



��7../�0 ��358� � , ���'�3����� "#� %&���&9&9#( $&

� #0�#/
(�/��%�!(�!�%#(

��7.0��� ��358� � , ���'�3����� "#� %&���&9&9#( $&

*%/��
.�%#(

��7.0�/� ��358� � , ����1����� "#� %&����'%�#�(�%(

(�� ��
�
%
� !� �% !1#�!�% � #�(

���.���7 �5����8�� � , ����4������ ���������� � ,&�(',

�����������$�� ��$���+�,�

��3���411�5���������������������

��1�56	3�:�53����5�53���

�����

#�����2����������;�

���������������;��������

�����%������

3���������3
<�	=

3���>���
5
6�
�����6�

-�33�
�
�11�8���

Page 2 of 2ts interlink - 03 Dec 2014

03/12/2014https://secure.tslinkonline.co.uk/templates/companiesHouse/company-officer-details.c...

Page 69



Appendix

Page 70



30 Alie Street

Map 1

Page 71



30 Alie Street

Map 2

Page 72



30 Alie Street

Map 3

Page 73



Appendix

Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Appendix

Page 78



8th April 2015 

Charlie’s Angels 

30 Alie Street, London, E1 

Present: Andrew Heron (LBTH Licensing Officer), Mr Abdul Makil (LBTH 14944) 

and Mr Ali Jacko (Manager) 

Premises 

Interior not visible from outside  

The Licensee shall ensure that the 

interior of the premises where 

sexual entertainment is offered shall 

not be capable of being seen from 

the outside of the premises, and 

that the exterior is maintained to a 

satisfactory level of decorum.

The entrance door can be tied back, at which 

point it is possible to see in to the club from 

the street.  I am advised there is a door man 

who closes the door, there is a small partition 

at the end of the bar, but you can see in. 

I am advised that the performers do smoke 

outside buy have knee length jackets on.  

Saw from CCTV recordings that the door is 

kept closed by doorman. 

Advised that by the entrance is the lounge 

area and reception, no striptease is going on 

there.  

Designated areas – approved 

access to dressing rooms 

The sexual entertainment shall take 

place only in the areas designated 

by the Council and the approved 

access to the dressing room(s) shall 

be maintained whilst sexual 

entertainment is taking place and 

The Code of Conduct is on display. There is 

no public access to dressing rooms; the door 

is locked with a combination code lock. 

  

There is also CCTV in changing rooms.  

Page 79



immediately thereafter

Advertising outside 

Not permit the display outside of the 

premises of photographs or other 

images, excluding trademarks or 

logos, which are unacceptable to 

the Council, and which indicate or 

suggest that sexual entertainment 

takes place on the premises.

There is a large advertising board that 

explains what is going on in the premises.  I 

advised that this could potentially be 

problematic as no advertising is permitted. 

Also the logo for the premises is a silhouette 

of a naked woman on a pole.  

CCTV coverage 

Outside 

CCTV covering the outside covering 

all areas to which the public have 

access 

CCTV is in place throughout the premises is 

all public areas.  The coverage is sufficient, 

but some of the recordings are rather grainy in 

quality. 

Inside

Public access 

Covering the inside of the premises 

covering all areas to which the 

public have access including private 

performance areas and booths  

There is good coverage throughout the 

publically accessible areas of the premises. 

private performance areas and 

booths 

covering the booths and private 

areas 

The lower floor is ok. 

On the first floor, there are 7 booths plus a 

small upper booth which all have CCTV in 

them. 

entrances and exits  

covering entrances and exits but 

Cameras are well placed at the main 

entrance/exit.  Men’s and women’s toilets do 

Page 80



excluding toilets not have cameras in them. 

Functionality 

Continually record  

All cameras shall continually record 

whilst the premises are open to the 

public and the recorded images 

shall be kept available for a 

minimum of 31 days 

I am advised that the CCTV cameras are 

operating continually 24/7, regardless of 

whether licensable activities are going on. 

I am advised that recordings are retained for 

30 days.  I advised that this would need to be 

increased to 31 days to comply, and was told 

that this would not be a problem. 

Facilities for viewing 

Recorded images shall be made 

available to an authorised officer or 

a police officer together with 

facilities for viewing. 

I am advised that USB and DVDs or recorded 

images can be made available. 

Recordings older than 2 days – 

24 hours’ notice  

Recordings outside this period shall 

be made available on 24 hours’ 

notice. 

All ok 

Recordings 2 days previous 

immediately available  

The recordings for the preceding 

two days shall be made available 

immediately on request. 

All ok – memory sticks available. 

Notes: 

• PRICING: There is a price lists for drinks and dances on tables.  This list says

there is no admission fee.  However, the current premises licence holder

Page 81



advises me that there is a £5 admission fee after 20:00hrs.  This is potentially 

misleading under consumer protection legislation. 

• House rules and prices throughout.

• ‘Funny money’ vouchers can be given to girls.

• No fees are negotiated between dancers and punters.

• I advised that I had had trouble in contacting their legal representative

throughout the SEV process, that I was getting either no response, or a

greatly delayed response from their Solicitor.  I advised that the application

was being treated as a new premises application as opposed to an existing

premises as a result of the company name used on the application rather than

the name of the incumbent premises licence holder.  I advised that we had

informed their solicitor in February.  The premises licence holder and Mr

Jacko advised that their solicitor had not yet informed them of this; plus they

had had similar issues in gaining contact with them.  Mr Jacko asked if the

premises had a potential claim for negligence, to which I responded that this

was not something that I could advise them on.

Page 82



Page 83



Appendix

Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Appendix 1

Page 87



�

����������	�


�	�� ������������

���� �������������������

�	� ������������

�������  �����!���"�!�#������$������%�&�$%'��((�������

������������ ���)*����(�+,�-.//��/��0%12'%.3�4/5%.����1%4$��%4�-/12 %�-0�,�$%'�

1��������((��������� �����6!���"�!&�#������$�����&�1������%��70�,�$-% 2�1�

0%12'%.3�-/$4�/��2 %�.% %2-4�84/5%.����1%4$�-/12 %9�$%'�12 %: %��--����

������)�-0�


	��	�����
���� ������(


����������  �
(����

����������	�


���������������������������������������������������

��������������� �����!���������!������������������"
��
�����������#��������$�������%�����������������&

��
��������������

�������������!������������������

������������������������������������%�������������������'��!������(��	�����������������%��������������!������������

��������������������������������	�����)��������)��������������� ����������������!������������������*�

������%�	��������!���������������������������������������+�

�� ��	���������%������������������������������������� ������
���!���������!����������!���������'!����,�����

�� ������	����%����� ��������������������������	����� ����������������������������� ������	�������������%�

���������

�� �������������!�������������

"� 
�������	�

'� 
����!!���������	����� �������������������������-�.����/�������� ��������������������'������'������� ���

��!����������	�!�!��0�������������������!����������������������

1� ,�������������!�2��������������!�������!���������� ���������������������������!������������3��������������

���������������!����!������������������������
��
���������0�������������������������!�������������!�

��	�������������������������2��������4��	�������

�� (�������������� �����������!����������������� �������%���������������������!�������������	��������������

������������������

5� 6�����

7������%�����

Maria Guida | Partner | Property & Licensing 

Fletcher Day | 25 Savile Row | Mayfair | London | W1S 2ER

Fletcher Day is the trading name for Fletcher Day Limited. Registered in England & Wales number 08367719. Authorised and regulated by the 
Solicitors Regulation Authority 
under number 614192. With effect from 1 September 2014 the business of Fletcher Day LLP  transferred to Fletcher Day Limited. Our terms and 
conditions remain the same. 

Page 88



Appendix 1

Page 89



Appendix Two 

STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES 

General 

1. The Licensee must remain in personal control of the premises at all times that it is

trading or nominate in writing an individual over the age of 18 with the authority to 

direct activities within the Premises. 

2. The licensee shall notify the Council, in writing, of any change in directors,

trustees, partners or other persons concerned in the management of the licensed 

activities within fourteen days of such change. 

3. The Licensee shall provide in a timely fashion copies of any documents

reasonably required by an authorised officer of the Council to prove compliance with 

this Licence. 

4. The licensee must give written notice to the Council if s/he wishes to surrender the

licence. 

5. The Council reserves the right to amend or alter these conditions (provided that

such change will not prevent the operators from viably carrying on the business of 

the premises) following consultation with licensees 

6. The meaning of “sexual entertainment” is given in Section 27 of the Policing and

Crime Act 2009. 

Management 

7. A suitable and sufficient number of door supervisors and trained staff will be

employed (based on a risk assessment) when sexual entertainment is offered. Their 

duties will include monitoring customers and performers to ensure that the Code of 

Conduct for Dancers and the House Rules are being obeyed and enforcing if 

necessary. 

8. The Licensee shall prepare and implement a Code of Conduct for Performers. The

Code shall be approved by the council and will not be altered without their consent. 

9. The Licensee shall prepare House Rules governing the conduct of customers. The

Rules shall be approved by the council and shall not be altered without their consent. 

Premises 

10. The approved layout of the premises shall not be altered without prior consent of

the council. 

Page 90



11. The Licensee shall ensure that the interior of the premises where sexual

entertainment is offered shall not be capable of being seen from the outside of the 

premises, and that the exterior is maintained to a satisfactory level of decorum. 

12. The sexual entertainment shall take place only in the areas designated by the

Council and the approved access to the dressing room(s) shall be maintained whilst 

sexual entertainment is taking place and immediately thereafter. 

13. CCTV shall be installed to cover the inside and the outside of the premises

covering all areas to which the public have access, including private performance 

areas and booths, entrances and exits but excluding toilets. All cameras shall 

continually record whilst the premises are open to the public and the recorded 

images shall be kept available for a minimum of 31 days Recorded images shall be 

made available to an authorised officer or a police officer together with facilities for 

viewing. The recordings for the preceding two days shall be made available 

immediately on request. Recordings outside this period shall be made available on 

24 hours’ notice. 

Advertising 

14. The Licensee shall not permit the display outside of the premises of photographs

or other images, excluding trademarks or logos, which are unacceptable to the 

Council, and which indicate or suggest that sexual entertainment takes place on the 

premises. 

15. Where the Council has given notice in writing to the Licensee objecting to an

advertisement on the grounds that, if displayed, it would offend public decency or be 

likely to encourage or incite crime and disorder that advertisement shall be removed 

or not be displayed. 

Admission to the Premises 

16. No person under the age of 18 years shall be permitted on the premises when

sexual entertainment is being offered, and a clear notice to this effect will be 

displayed at the entrance. 

17. Customers who appear to be under the age of 21 must be asked to provide a

Pass-Scheme approved photographic card, their passport or photographic driving 

licence to prove their age. Prominent notices must be clearly displayed to this effect 

at the entrance(s) to the premises. 

18. The content of the House Rules will be made known to customers prior to their

admission to the premises when sexual entertainment is provided. 

Page 91



19. Signs must be displayed at appropriate locations advising that any customer

attempting to make physical contact with a performer will be asked to leave; 

Performers 

20. Entertainment will be given only by the performers engaged by or through the

Licensee and there will be no audience participation. 

21. The licensee shall keep a record of each performer, including their proper name

and any aliases, and their residential address. With each record the licensee shall 

keep a copy of a photographic form of identity and proof of address of the performer. 

22. On days when sexual entertainment is provided, the licensee, or their

representative, shall keep a record of those performers working at the premises on 

that day in a daily record. The daily record shall be immediately available for 

inspection by authorised officers. 

23. The licensee shall ensure that each performer signs the code of conduct in their

proper name, acknowledging that they have read and understood and are prepared 

to abide by the code of conduct, and signed copies be kept on the premises for 

inspection by authorised officers. 

24. During a performance there shall be no full bodied physical contact between the

customer and the dancer other than the transfer of money or token at the beginning, 

during and conclusion of the dance. 

25. During a performance there shall be no full bodied physical contact between

dancers and they are not to touch each other’s breasts and or genitalia. 

26. Performers must remain fully dressed while on the premises, except while

performing in areas approved by the Council for sexual entertainment and in the 

approved changing rooms. 

27. Performers must redress at the conclusion of the performance.

28. Performers must never be in the company of a customer except in an area open

tithe public (excluding the toilets) within the premises. 

29. The Licensee is to implement a policy for the safety of the performers when they

leave the premises. 

Customers 

30. The House Rules regarding customer behaviour will be implemented at all times

that the premises are operating with sexual entertainment. 

31. No member of the public shall be admitted or allowed to remain in the dance

area if they appear to be intoxicated or under the influence of illegal substances. 

Page 92



32. Customers may not be permitted to photograph film or electronically record any

performance. 

33. Customers shall not be permitted to enter non-public areas of the premises such

as changing rooms. 

Page 93



Appendix 1

Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Appendix

Page 105



24

22

12.3m

1

4
0

19a

34

P
a
s
s
a
g
e

3
1

BUCKLE S
TREET

5
5

5
7

El S
ub Sta

8

36

L
u
th

e
ra

n

1
5
 t
o
 1

9

4

H
a
lf M

o
o
n

7
7

S
t G

e
o
rg

e
's

122

1

Warehouse 1
8

G
e
rm

a
n

English Martyrs

Castle Square

10

2

NORTH TENTER STREET

12

PH

128

Sedgwick Centre

5
2

6

2
6
 t
o
 3

0

SCARBOROUGH STREET

3
0

Underg
ro

und Railw
ay

3
1

E
A

S
T
 T

E
N

T
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

14.5m

13.4m
W

E
S

T
 T

E
N

T
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

P
o
lic

e

S
ta

tio
n

SOUTH TENTER ST

1
 to

 2
9

25

6
3

13.1m

18

2
3

ALIE S
TREET

25

13.0m

6
9

S
T

 M
A

R
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

PH

44
6
4

9

10

57

5

6a

9

Standon House

LB

38 to 48

BRAHAM
STREET

C
h
u
rc

h

22

40

CAMPERDOW
N S

TREET

10 to 12

12.7m

32

W
HITECHAPEL H

IG
H S

TREET

55

17

Minet House

3
5

12

13.6m

26

6

1

19

3
2
 t
o
 3

8

Maers
k H

ouse

21

50 to 60

28

to
8

6

S
ta

tio
n

P
L
O

U
G

H

ALIE
 S

TREET

6
8

S
T
R

E
E

T

3
0

b

32

55 to
 5

7 12.4m

7
0

7
4

1
0
0

E
A

S
T
 T

E
N

T
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

L
E

M
A

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T

P
o
lic

e

P
H

13.1m

TENTER PASSAGE

31

19b

38

42

19

City
 R

each

2
5

Centra
l H

ouse

Riga Mews

Primary School

Catholic

Frazer House

L
E
M

A
N

 S
T
R

E
E
T

1 to 10

Posts

Garrick

Court

27

16

20

Lattice

House

Network

14

House

14

18

16

36

H
A

L
F
M

O
O

N

P
A

S
S

A
G

E

126

127

39 to
 47

6
5

21

Enterprise

House

2

P
o
s
ts

9

Goldpence Apartments

71Altitude Point

29

11
4

C
a
m

b
ric

A
p
a
rtm

e
n
ts

Charlies Angels

Alie
Stre

et

L
e
m

a
n

S
tre

e
t

Bra
ham

Stre
et

W
hite

ch
apel H

igh S
tre

et

Commercial Road

M
a

n
s
e

ll S
tre

e
t

Whitechapel

Spitalfields and Banglatown µ
SEV Premises

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey, London Borough of Tower Hamlets 100019288

Page 106



Appendix

Page 107



�
�

� �
P

a
g
e

 1
 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l 

W
a
rd

 P
ro

fi
le

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 U

n
it
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

4
 

Page 108



P
a

g
e

 2
 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

 

P
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

E
th

n
ic

it
y
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

R
e
lig

io
n
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

H
o
u
s
in

g
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

H
e
a
lt
h
 -

 L
im

it
in

g
 i
lln

e
s
s
 o

r 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

U
n
p
a
id

 c
a
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

L
a
b
o
u
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

S
o
c
io

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
u
p
s
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

Q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��	



In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

T
h
e
 w

a
rd

 p
ro

fi
le

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

2
0
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
T

h
e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l,
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p
h
ic

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

o
f 

e
a
c
h
 w

a
rd

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

 d
e
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
. 
  

In
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
4
, 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
a
rd

s
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

 1
7
 t

o
 2

0
. 

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

B
o
u

n
d
a
ry

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

o
r 

E
n
g

la
n
d
, 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

e
v
e
ry

 c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

in
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 r

o
u
g

h
ly

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 

n
o
 w

a
rd

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e
 a

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 1

0
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t.
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
, 

th
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 p

e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 
4
,0

2
9
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
, 
ri
s
in

g
 t

o
 4

,4
1
7
 b

y
 2

0
1
8
, 
a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 g

ro
w

th
. 

  

D
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
1
 C

e
n
s
u
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
is

 w
a
rd

 p
ro

fi
le

 a
s
 t

h
is

 s
ti
ll 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 s

in
g

le
 b

e
s
t 

s
o
u

rc
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 

g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
y
 s

m
a
ll 

e
n
o
u
g

h
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
g
re

g
a
te

d
 u

p
 i

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 w
a
rd

s
. 

W
h
ile

 m
o
re

 r
e
c
e
n
t 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

re
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
fo

r 
th

e
 
b
o
ro

u
g

h
 
a
n
d
 
o
ld

 
w

a
rd

 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
, 

th
e
s
e
 
c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
to

 
in

fe
r 

th
e
 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 
a
c
c
o
rd

in
g

 
to

 
th

e
 
n
e
w

 
w

a
rd

 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
. 
  
 

Page 109



P
a

g
e

 3
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

A
g

e
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re

F
ig

u
re

 1
: 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 b

y
 a

g
e

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
1
0
3
E

W
 -

 A
g
e
 b

y
 s

in
g
le

 y
e
a
r)

•
A

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1
1
 C

e
n
s
u
s
, 

th
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l

w
a
rd

 
w

a
s
 

1
4
,1

9
0
 

w
h

ic
h
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 

fo
r 

5
.9

 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

to
ta

l
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

.

•
T

h
e
 w

a
rd

 h
a
d
 6

,6
8
2
 m

a
le

s
 a

n
d
 6

,2
0
3
 f

e
m

a
le

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
 g

e
n
d
e
r

s
p
lit

 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
rd

 o
f 

5
1
.9

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 
m

a
le

 a
n
d
 4

8
.1

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 
fe

m
a
le

.

•
T

h
e
 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 
d
e
n
s
it
y
 
in

 
th

is
 
w

a
rd

 
w

a
s
 
1
4
8
 
p

e
o
p
le

 
p
e

r 
h
e
c
ta

re
,

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
1
2
9
 p

e
o
p
le

 p
e
r 

h
e
c
ta

re
.

•
T

h
e
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
w

a
rd

 h
a
d
 a

 l
o
w

e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 b

o
th

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g

e
d

6
5
+

 a
n
d
 a

g
e
d
 0

-1
5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

 t
h
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
.

T
a

b
le

 1
: 

N
u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 b

y
 a

g
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 b

y
 A

g
e

 
0
-1

5
 

1
6
-6

4
 

6
5
+

 
T

o
ta

l 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l

2
,2

4
5
 

1
1
,2

1
5
 

7
3
0
 

1
4
,1

9
0
 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l 
%

1
5
.8

%
 

7
9
.0

%
 

5
.1

%
 

1
0
0
%

 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 %
1
9
.7

%
 

7
4
.1

%
 

6
.1

%
 

1
0
0
%

 
(S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
1
0
3
E

W
 -

 A
g
e
 b

y
 s

in
g
le

 y
e
a
r)

 

�
�

�

�
�

�


�

�



�

�


�

�

�
�

�

�
�

�




	







�



�



�



�



�



�



�



	




�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�

Page 110



P
a

g
e

 4
 

E
th

n
ic

it
y
 

F
ig

u
re

 2
: 

E
th

n
ic

it
y

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
2
0
1
E

W
 -

 E
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
)

R
e

li
g

io
n

F
ig

u
re

 3
: 

R
e
lig

io
n

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
2
0
8
E

W
 –

 R
e
lig

io
n
)

•
A

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1
1
 C

e
n
s
u
s
, 

8
,4

1
6
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
rd

 w
e
re

 B
M

E
(5

9
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t)

. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 w

a
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f
5
4
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t.

•
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
o
f 

B
a
n
g

la
d
e
s
h
i 

o
ri
g

in
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 

fo
r 

3
8
 

p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

(5
,4

2
1
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

),
 

a
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 

th
a

n
 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
a
v
e
ra

g
e
.

•
T

h
e
re

 
w

e
re

 
3
,7

1
8
 

W
h
it
e
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 
in

 
th

e
 

W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 

w
a
rd

.
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 W

h
it
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 i

n
 t

h
e

w
a
rd

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
.

•
T

h
e
 

th
re

e
 

la
rg

e
s
t 

e
th

n
ic

 
g

ro
u
p
s
 

in
 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 

(W
h
it
e

 
B

ri
ti
s
h
,

B
a
n
g

la
d
e
s
h
i 
a
n
d
 W

h
it
e
 O

th
e
r)

 a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

7
9
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

in
 t

h
is

 w
a
rd

.

•
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

s
 C

h
ri
s
ti
a
n
 w

a
s

1
9
.3

 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

–
 
th

e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
lo

w
e
s
t 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 
o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 2
0
 w

a
rd

s
. 

A
t 

4
0
.4

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f
M

u
s
lim

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
a
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
.

•
2
,7

4
2
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 

w
a
rd

 e
x
p

lic
it
ly

 s
ta

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
d

n
o
 

re
lig

io
n
, 

th
is

 
e
q

u
a
te

d
 

to
 

1
9
.3

 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

w
a
rd

 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
,

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
1
9
.1

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t.

•
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 h
a
d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 d

id
n
o
t 

s
ta

te
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
lig

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
s
u
s
 f

o
rm

 w
h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 L

o
n
d
o
n

a
n
d
 
th

e
 
re

s
t 

o
f 

E
n
g

la
n
d
. 

In
 
th

e
 
W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 

w
a
rd

 
th

e
re

 
w

e
re

 
2
,4

6
0

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 d

id
 n

o
t 

s
ta

te
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
lig

io
n
 –

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 f
o
r 

1
7
.3

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t

o
f 

th
e
 w

a
rd

’s
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
.


�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
	
�

	
�
�

	

�

	
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�

�

�
�

�
�

	
�
�

	
�
�

	
	
�

	
�
�

�
�



�




�

�


�

�


�

�


�

	




�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
�

!
��
�"
��
�
#

�
��
�
$

�
�
�
 
��
�
�
%�
�

&
�'
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
#

�
�
��
�

�
#�
��
%�

	
�
��
�


�
�	
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�


��
�

�
�
��
�

	

��
�

�
�

�

	
�
��
�

	
�
�	
�




��
�


�
��
�

	
�
��
�

	
�
��
�

�
��
�

�
�
�



�




�

�


�

�


�

�


�

	




�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
�

(
�
��
 
��
�
��
�
��
%�
�
��
�

)
�
�#
�
��
 
��
�

"
��
�
#�
#�
��
 
��
�

*
�$
�

&
+
%�
�,

-�
.
�%
�

�
��
�
+

�
+
�
�
�
�%
�

/
�
#�
%�
��
�

Page 111



�
�

� �
P

a
g
e

 5
 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 

T
e
n

u
re

�
�

F
ig

u
re

 4
: 

T
e

n
u

re
 o

f 
h

o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

s

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
4
0
5
E

W
 -

 T
e
n
u
re

 –
 H

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
)

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 s
iz

e
�

•
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
a
s
 

a
 

w
h
o

le
 

h
a
d
 

a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

lo
w

e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 o
w

n
e
r-

o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

(2
6
.6

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 4

9
.5

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

lly
 

re
n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

a
s
 a

lm
o
s
t 

d
o
u
b
le

 t
h
a
t 

o
f 

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 

 
T

h
e
re

 
w

a
s
 

a
ls

o
 

a
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

p
ri

v
a
te

ly
 

re
n
te

d
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 
  

•
 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 5
,7

0
7
 h

o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
w

a
rd

. 
 C

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

o
th

e
r 

w
a
rd

s
, 

W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 

h
a
d
 

a
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 
to

 
th

e
 
b
o
ro

u
g

h
 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
, 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 
fo

r 
5
.6

 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 w

h
o
le

. 

•
 

2
2
.7

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 w

a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 o
w

n
e

r-
o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
, 

a
 l

o
w

e
r 

ra
te

 t
h
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
2
6
.6

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t.
  

•
 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
 l

o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

lly
 r

e
n
te

d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

in
 

th
is

 
w

a
rd

 
b
u
t 

a
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

p
ri
v
a
te

 
re

n
te

d
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
. 

 T
o
g

e
th

e
r,

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

n
te

rs
 (

7
6
.1

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 w
a
s
 l

o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 (

7
2
.2

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

. 
F

ig
u

re
 5

: 
T

e
n

u
re

 o
f 
h

o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

s

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
4
0
5
E

W
 -

 T
e
n
u
re

 –
 H

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
)�

•
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
w

a
rd

 w
it
h
 t

h
re

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

3
4
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
rd

. 
T

h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 w

a
s
 j
u
s
t 

b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
3
5
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t.
 

•
 

O
n
 C

e
n
s
u
s
 d

a
y
, 

6
8
0
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 f

iv
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 
p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n
 t

h
e
m

. 
 T

h
is

 e
q

u
a
te

s
 t

o
 1

1
.9

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 

th
e
 w

a
rd

 a
n
d
 w

a
s
 l

o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 f

o
r 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 (
1
2
.3

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

. 

•
 

T
h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 
s
iz

e
 

in
 

th
e
 

w
a
rd

 
w

a
s
 

2
.4

9
 

c
o

m
p
a
re

d
 

to
 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
2
.5

1
. 

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

	
��
�
�
+
#�
��
#�
0
��
�
%�
��
1�
#,

�
��
�
�
��
2
�
+
��
.
�
�
��
�
#�
�
��
�
+
%�
�
�
��
�#
�
�
�%
��
#�
�
.
�
%�
��
�
��
��
�
,
,
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
+
�
��
%�
�
�
�
3�
�1
�#
�
�
��
�
3�
�
�
,
2
��
�
%�
��
�%
�.
��
�
��
�
1�
#,

�
��
�
�
��
2
�
+
��
��
�
��
4
�
�
��
1�
��
�
�
��
#�
�.
�
�
��
.
�
%�
�
#�
,
�
�
�
 
�
%�
��
�
�

�
��
�
,
,
�
�
�
��
�
�
��



��
�


�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
�	
�

�
	
��
�

�
�
��
�


�
�	
�

	
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�

��
�


�
�	
�

	
�
��
�



�




�

�


�

�


�

�


�

	




�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
�

��
0
��
 
�(
�
�
��
5
#�
�

6
#�
0
�
��
�(
�
�
��
�

*
�
��
�
��
(
�
�
��
�

"
.
�
�
#�
"
��
+
�
��
#

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
	
��
�

�


�
�

�


��
�

�


�	
�


�
�

�

�
�
�
�

	
�
�	
�

	
�
�	
�

	
�
�	
�

	
�
��
�

�
�

�

	


�

�

	
�
��
�

	
�
�

�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�
�

�

�
��
�



�




�

�


�

�


�

�


�

	




�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
.
�
#�
�
�
,
��
�%

��
�
�
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��


��
�
�
�
��

	
��
�
#%
�
�

Page 112



P
a

g
e

 6
 

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 c
o

m
p

o
s
it

io
n

 
F

ig
u

re
 6

: 
H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 c
o
m

p
o

s
it
io

n
 -

 p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
h

o
u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 b

y
 t

y
p

e

(S
o

u
rc

e
: 

C
e

n
s
u

s
 2

0
1
1

 Q
S

1
1

3
E

W
 -

 H
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

 c
o

m
p

o
s
it
io

n
 –

 H
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

s
) 

F
ig

u
re

 7
: 

H
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 c
o
m

p
o

s
it
io

n
: 

p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
h
a

t 
liv

e
 i
n

 e
a

c
h
 h

o
u
s
e

h
o

ld
 t

y
p

e

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
1
1
2
E

W
 -

 H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 –

 P
e
o
p
le

) 

•
A

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

e
n
s
u
s
, 

3
9
.3

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e

w
a
rd

 l
iv

e
d
 i

n
 f

a
m

ily
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

it
h
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

c
h
ild

re
n
; 

th
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 w

a
s
 l

o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
4
6
.2

 p
e
r

c
e
n
t.

•
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 

w
it
h
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 

2
0
.7

p
e
rc

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
rd

, 
lo

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
2
6
.6

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t.

•
S

in
g

le
 
a
d
u
lt
 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 
fo

r 
3
5
.4

 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
ll

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 w

a
rd

; 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

1
4
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 w

a
rd

’s
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 l
iv

e
 i
n
 t

h
is

 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

.

•
O

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 a
lo

n
e
 (

6
5
+

) 
a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

4
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t 

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 l

o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6

p
e
r 

c
e
n
t.

•
T

a
b
le

 
3
 

s
h
o
w

s
 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

th
a
t 

w
e
re

o
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
e
d
, 

h
a
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
e
d
ro

o
m

s
, 

o
r 

w
e
re

u
n
d
e
r-

o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 
a
t 

th
e
 
ti
m

e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
C

e
n
s
u
s
. 

 
1
8
 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

in
 

th
e
 

w
a
rd

 
(1

,0
2
6
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
) 

w
e
re

o
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
e
d
 –

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
.

T
a

b
le

 2
: 

A
v
e

ra
g
e

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 s

iz
e

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 p

e
r 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 
W

h
it

e
c
h

a
p

e
l

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
E

n
g

la
n

d

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 w

it
h

 
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 
4
.6

5
 

4
.3

0
 

3
.8

9
 

3
.7

8
 

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 w

it
h

 n
o

n
-

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 
1
.8

8
 

1
.8

1
 

1
.8

4
 

1
.7

8
 

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
4
0
6
E

W
 -

 H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 s
iz

e
) 

T
a

b
le

 3
: 

O
c
c
u

p
a

n
c
y
 r

a
ti
n

g
s

A
re

a
O

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
e
d

 
(-

1
 o

r 
le

s
s
) 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 
B

e
d

ro
o

m
s
 (

0
) 

U
n

d
e
r 

O
c
c
u

p
ie

d
 

(+
1
 o

r 
m

o
re

) 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l 

1
,0

2
6

 
1
8
%

 
3
,1

4
6

 
5
5
%

 
1
,5

3
5

 
2
7
%

 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

1
6
,6

0
5

 
1
6
%

 
5
1
,0

5
8

 
5
0
%

 
3
3
,5

9
4

 
3
3
%

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

3
7
0
,5

3
1

 
1
1
%

 
1
,2

8
2
,8

8
3

 
3
9
%

 
1
,6

1
2
,7

5
9

 
4
9
%

 

E
n

g
la

n
d

1
,0

2
4
,4

7
3

 
5
%

 
5
,8

8
5
,9

5
1

 
2
7
%

 
1
5
,1

5
2
,9

4
4

 
6
9
%

 
(S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
4
0
6
E

W
 -

 H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 s
iz

e
) 

�
�
��
�

�
	
��
�

	
�
��
�

�
�	
��
�

�

"
��
�
#�
�
�
+
%�
�
�
��
%�
.
��
�
�
+
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
#�
�

*
��
 
��
��
�
+
��
�+
�
�
�
#�
�
�

"
��
�
#�
�
�
+
%�
�
�
��
%�
.
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
#�
�

��
�
�
��
�
#�
�
��
1�
,
��
4
�.
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
#�
�

*
��
 
��
��
�
+
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
0
�
#

�


��
�

�
�
�	
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�

"
��
�
#�
�
�
+
%�
�
�
��
%�
.
��
�
�
+
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
#�
�

"
��
�
#�
�
�
+
%�
�
�
��
%�
.
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
#�
�

*
��
 
��
��
�
+
��
�+
�
�
�
#�
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
#�
�
��
1�
,
��
4
�.
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
#�
�

*
��
 
��
��
�
+
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
0
�
#

Page 113



P
a

g
e

 7
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 -

 L
im

it
in

g
 i

ll
n

e
s

s
 o

r 
d

is
a

b
il
it

y
 

T
a

b
le

 4
: 

L
im

it
in

g
 i
lln

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty

A
re

a
 

D
a

y
-t

o
-d

a
y
 

a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 
li
m

it
e
d

 a
 l
o

t 

D
a

y
-t

o
-d

a
y
 

a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 l
im

it
e
d

 a
 

li
tt

le
 

D
a

y
-t

o
-d

a
y
 

a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 

n
o

t 
li
m

it
e
d

 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l

8
0
8

 
8
8
7

 
1
2
,4

9
5

 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l
(%

)
5
.7

%
 

6
.3

%
 

8
8
.1

%
 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 (
%

)
6
.8

%
 

6
.7

%
 

8
6
.5

%
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 (
%

)
6
.7

%
 

7
.4

%
 

8
5
.8

%
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 (
%

)
8
.3

%
 

9
.3

%
 

8
2
.4

%
 

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
3
0
3
E

W
 -

 L
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
 o

r 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

•
O

n
 

C
e
n
s
u
s
 

d
a
y
, 

a
ro

u
n
d
 

8
0
8
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 
(5

.7
 

p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 
in

W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
h
a
d
 a

 l
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
 o

r 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 l
im

it
in

g
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 d

a
y
 t

o
 d

a
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

 l
o
t,

 w
h
ile

 6
.3

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

(8
8
7

re
s
id

e
n
ts

) 
h
a
d
 a

 l
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
 o

r 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 l

im
it
in

g
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 d

a
y
 t
o
 d

a
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

 l
it
tl
e
.

•
In

 
W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l,
 

th
e
 

ra
te

 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 
w

it
h
 

a
 

lo
n
g

 
te

rm
 

h
e
a
lt
h

p
ro

b
le

m
 o

r 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 l
im

it
in

g
 d

a
y
 t

o
 d

a
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

 l
o
t 

w
a
s
 b

e
lo

w
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 (
6
.8

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

, 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 (

6
.7

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 a
n
d

E
n
g

la
n
d
 r

a
te

s
.

•
T

h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 l
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
 o

r 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
lim

it
in

g
 
d
a
y
 
to

 
d
a
y
 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 
a
 
lit

tl
e
 
o
f 

6
.3

 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

w
a
s
 
a
ls

o
b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 (
6
.7

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

, 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
g

la
n
d

a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
.

U
n

p
a

id
 c

a
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

T
a

b
le

 5
: 

U
n
p

a
id

 c
a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

A
re

a
 

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 

n
o

 
u

n
p

a
id

 
c
a
re

 

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 1

 
to

 1
9
 h

o
u

rs
 

u
n

p
a
id

 c
a
re

 
a
 w

e
e
k
 

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 2

0
 

to
 4

9
 h

o
u

rs
 

u
n

p
a
id

 c
a
re

 
a
 w

e
e
k
 

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 5

0
 

o
r 

m
o

re
 h

o
u

rs
 

u
n

p
a
id

 c
a
re

 a
 

w
e
e
k
 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l

1
3
,0

7
3

 
6
8
0

 
2
0
9

 
2
2
8

 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l
(%

)
9
2
.1

%
 

4
.8

%
 

1
.5

%
 

1
.6

%
 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 (
%

)
9
2
.4

%
 

4
.3

%
 

1
.4

%
 

1
.9

%
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 (
%

)
9
1
.6

%
 

5
.3

%
 

1
.3

%
 

1
.8

%
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 (
%

)
8
9
.8

%
 

6
.5

%
 

1
.4

%
 

2
.4

%
 

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
3
0
1
E

W
 -

 P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
u
n
p
a
id

 c
a
re

)

•
A

ro
u
n
d
 7

.9
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 u

n
p
a
id

c
a
re

. 
T

h
e
 

W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 

ra
te

 
w

a
s
 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 

a
b
o
v
e
 

th
e
 

T
o
w

e
r

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 (

7
.6

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 b
u
t 

b
e
lo

w
 L

o
n
d
o
n

 (
8
.4

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

a
n
d
 E

n
g

la
n
d
 (

1
0
.2

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 r
a
te

s
.

•
F

ro
m

 1
,1

1
7
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
w

h
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 u

n
p
a
id

 c
a
re

,
a
ro

u
n
d
 2

0
9
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 c

a
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
 t

o
 4

9
 h

o
u
rs

 a
 w

e
e
k
,

w
h

ile
 2

2
8
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 c

a
re

 f
o
r 

5
0
 o

r 
m

o
re

 h
o
u
rs

 a
 w

e
e
k
.

•
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 c
a
re

 f
o
r 

5
0
 h

o
u
rs

 o
r 

m
o
re

 o
f

1
.6

 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

in
 

W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 

w
a
s
 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 

b
e
lo

w
 

th
e
 

T
o
w

e
r

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
a
te

 o
f 

1
.9

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t.

Page 114



�
�

� �
P

a
g
e

 8
 

L
a

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

  

•
 

T
a
b
le

 6
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 
o
f 

la
b
o
u
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
e
k
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 

C
e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 t

a
b
le

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 1

6
 t

o
 7

4
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 

W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

a
re

a
s
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
w

a
rd

 
h
a
d
 a

 r
a
te

 o
f 

5
9
.7

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 

a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
a
te

 (
5
7
.6

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

, 
b
u
t 

b
e
lo

w
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 (

6
2
.4

 p
e
rc

e
n
t)

 a
n
d
 E

n
g

la
n
d
 (

6
2
.1

 p
e
r 

c
e

n
t)

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
lly

 i
n
a
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

ft
e
r 

h
o
m

e
 &

 f
a
m

ily
 (

6
.3

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 s
ic

k
 (

3
.6

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 w
a
s
 

lo
w

e
r 

in
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
lly

 i
n
a
c
ti
v
e
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 (
1
0
.5

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 w
a

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 

•
 

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

6
6
0
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 i
n
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l.
 W

h
ile

 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

5
.7

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

w
a
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 (
6
.7

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 r
a
te

, 
it
 w

a
s
 

a
b
o
v
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 (

5
.2

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 a
n
d
 E

n
g

la
n
d
 (

4
.4

 p
e
r 

c
e

n
t)

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
. 
  

T
a

b
le

 6
: 

L
a

b
o
u

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 -
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 a

c
ti
v
e

 (
E

A
) 

a
n

d
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 I

n
a

c
ti
v
e

 (
E

I)
 (

to
ta

ls
 a

n
d

 %
) 

A
re

a
 

E
A

: 
In

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
E

A
 

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

E
A

: 
F

u
ll
-

ti
m

e
 

s
tu

d
e
n

t

E
I:

 
R

e
ti

re
d

E
I:

 
S

tu
d

e
n

t 
(i

n
c
l.
 

fu
ll
-

ti
m

e
) 

 

E
I:

 
L

o
o

k
in

g
 

a
ft

e
r 

h
o

m
e
 /
 

fa
m

il
y
 

E
I:

 
L

o
n

g
-

te
rm

 
s
ic

k
 o

r 
d

is
a
b

le
d

E
I:

 
O

th
e
r

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l

6
,9

4
0

 
6
6
0

 
7
1
3

 
4
3
6

 
1
,2

2
4

 
7
3
8

 
4
2
3

 
4
9
5

 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l 
(%

)
5
9
.7

 
5
.7

 
6
.1

 
3
.7

 
1
0
.5

 
6
.3

 
3
.6

 
4
.3

 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 (
%

)
5
7
.6

 
6
.7

 
5
.5

 
4
.7

 
9
.9

 
7
.0

 
4
.5

 
4
.0

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 (
%

)
6
2
.4

 
5
.2

 
4
.1

 
8
.4

 
7
.8

 
5
.2

 
3
.7

 
3
.2

 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 (
%

)
6
2
.1

 
4
.4

 
3
.4

 
1
3
.7

 
5
.8

 
4
.4

 
4
.0

 
2
.2

 
(S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 K

S
6
0
1
E

W
 t
o
 K

S
6
0
3
E

W
 -

 E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 b

y
 s

e
x
, 

P
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 1

6
 t
o
 7

4
) 

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 o

f 
1
6
 t

o
 6

4
 (

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 a
c
ti

v
e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

n
ly

)
F

ig
u

re
 8

: 
U

n
e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 o

f 
1

6
 t
o

 6
4

 –
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 a
c
ti
v
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

n
ly

•
 

F
ig

u
re

 8
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
lly

 
a
c
ti
v
e
 
p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 
o
n
ly

. 
T

h
is

 
m

e
a
s
u
re

 
is

 
th

e
 
b
e
tt

e
r 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 b
u
t 

it
 i
s
 i
n
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
h
ig

h
e
r 

c
o

m
p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

ra
te

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

6
 t

o
 7

4
 a

g
e
 

g
ro

u
p
 a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

  

•
 

W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 

h
a
d
 t

h
e
 6

th
 l
o

w
e
s
t 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

w
it
h
 1

0
.1

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t,
 n

e
a
rl
y
 2

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
a
te

. 
 

•
 

O
n
 C

e
n
s
u
s
 d

a
y
, 

th
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

 w
a
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i

n
 

L
a
n
s
b
u
ry

 
(1

8
.8

 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 
a
n
d
 
th

e
 
lo

w
e
s
t 

in
 
S

t 
K

a
th

a
ri
n
e
’s

 
a
n
d
 

W
a
p
p
in

g
 w

it
h
 o

n
ly

 4
.9

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t.
 

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
: 
Q

S
6
0
1
E

W
 -

 E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
)

18.8

16.8

16.8

16.6

16.0

15.7

15.6

15.1

13.9

13.8

12.2

11.0

10.4

10.2

10.1

8.4

8.2

8.2

6.6

4.9

12.0

8.9

7.6


���
	



	


	
�

	
�

	
�





�

Page 115



P
a

g
e

 9
 

S
o

c
io

 e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
u

p
s

 

F
ig

u
re

 9
: 

S
o
c
io

 E
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
u

p
s

(S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 Q

S
6
0
7
E

W
 -

 N
S

-S
e
C

)�

•
A

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

e
n
s
u
s
, 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 4

1
.3

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
o
rk

in
g
 i

n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
ri
a
l 

a
n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
is

w
a
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
3
6
.1

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t.

•
A

t 
1
6
.3

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t,
 t

h
e
 w

a
rd

 h
a
d
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 w

e
re

 s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 (

1
4
.9

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

.

•
T

h
e
 
w

a
rd

 
h
a
d
 
a
 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 
lo

w
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 
o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g

 
a
g

e
d
 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 
w

h
o
 
w

e
re

 
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 
a
s
 
lo

n
g

 t
e
rm

 
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 
/ 

n
e
v
e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
1
3
.5

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 
(1

,5
0
6
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

).

�
	
��
�

	
�
�

�

	
�
��
�

	
�
�

�

	
�
��
�



�

�
�

	


�

	
�
�




�


�
�

�


�

�
�
�

�


�

�
�
�

�
� 
�
�
#�
7
��
�
.
�
#�
,
�
�
�
 
�
#�
�
��
7

�
#�
1�
%%
��
�
�
�

8�
��
#,

�
�
��
��
��
��
+
�
�
��
�
�
%3
�%
,
�
��

�
,
�
��
4
�
#%
�7
��
.
�
��
��
�
+
�
��
.
�
#$
�
#%

��
.
�
#�
%+
�
�
#0
�%
�
#4
�7
��
�
��
�
��
�
�3
�%
�
,
�

#�
+
��
�
�
�7
�#
�
+
��
�
�
��
�
�+
�
�
��
�
�
%

��
�
 
��
�
#,

�+
�
�
,
�
��
4
�
�
�7
��
�
0
�
#

�
,
�
��
4
�
�

�*
�+
�
�
�
�%

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�

�
�
.
�
#�
�
�
,
��
�%

��
�
�
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
�

Page 116



�
�

� �
P

a
g
e

 1
0
 

Q
u

a
li

fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 l

e
v
e

ls
 

T
a

b
le

 7
: 

H
ig

h
e
s
t 

q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

g
e
d

 1
6

 t
o

 6
4
 

A
re

a
 

N
o

 
q

u
a

li
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
 

L
e

v
e

l 
1

  
L

e
v
e

l 
2

 
A

p
p

re
n

ti
c

e
-

s
h

ip
 

L
e

v
e

l 
3

 
L

e
v
e

l 
4

 a
n

d
 

a
b

o
v
e

 
O

th
e

r 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l�

1
,3

2
8

 
8
9
3

 
8
6
8

 
7
8

 
1
,2

6
3

 
5
,5

9
6

 
1
,1

8
9

 

W
h

it
e
c
h

a
p

e
l

(%
)�

1
1
.8

 
8
.0

 
7
.7

 
0
.7

 
1
1
.3

 
4
9
.9

 
1
0
.6

 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 (
%

) 
1
5
.6

 
9
.8

 
9
.2

 
0
.8

 
1
0
.8

 
4
3
.6

 
1
0
.2

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 (
%

)
1
2
.4

 
1
1
.5

 
1
2
.6

 
1
.4

 
1
1
.5

 
4
0
.5

 
1
0
.0

 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 (
%

)
1
4
.8

 
1
5
.2

 
1
7
.1

 
3
.1

 
1
4
.5

 
2
9
.8

 
5
.6

 
(S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 L

C
5
1
0
2
E

W
 -

 H
ig

h
e
s
t 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 a

g
e
) 

F
ig

u
re

 1
0

: 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

g
e

d
 1

6
 t
o

 6
4

 w
it
h

 N
o

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l 
4

 p
lu

s
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o
n

�
(S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 L

C
5
1
0
2
E

W
 -

 H
ig

h
e
s
t 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 a

g
e
)

•
 

T
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 1

6
 t
o
 6

4
 i
n
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
s
h
o
w

e
d

 a
 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 w
it
h
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
h
ig

h
ly

 q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 w

it
h
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
  

a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 i
n
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
(4

9
.9

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 w
h

e
n
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 (
4
3
.6

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 a
n
d
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 

(4
0
.5

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

. 

•
 

A
ro

u
n
d
 1

,3
2
8
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
r 

1
1
.8

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

a
g

e
d
 1

6
 t

o
 6

4
 

d
id

 n
o
t 

h
o
ld

 a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
is

 r
a
te

 w
a
s
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 (

1
5
.6

 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

, 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 (

1
2
.4

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 a
n
d
 E

n
g

la
n
d
 r

a
te

s
 

(1
4
.8

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 n

o
 f
o
rm

a
l 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 6

th
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

o
u
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

2
0
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 n

o
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 

w
a
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 S

t 
K

a
th

e
ri
n
e
’s

 a
n
d
 W

a
p
p
in

g
 w

a
rd

 (
6
.8

 
p
e
r 

c
e
n
t)

 w
h
ile

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 w

it
h
 n

o
 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

a
n
s
b
u
ry

 w
a
rd

 w
it
h
 2

5
.6

 p
e

r 
c
e
n
t.
 

•
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 1

1
.3

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t,
 a

 r
a
te

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 

25.1

32.2

29.9

31.3

31.7

31.2

32.9

33.3

43.1

45.4

46.9

37.5

46.7

44.9

49.9

54.5

56.9

61.4

60.1

65.9

43.6

40.5

29.8

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

�

)
�
�9
+
�
��
1�
��
��
�
�
%

��
0
�
��
�
�9
+
�
��
1�
��
��
�
�
%�
�
�
�
��
2
�
0
�

Page 117



�

P
a

g
e

 1
1
 

S
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
l 

A
re

a
s

T
h
e
 m

a
p
 (

ri
g

h
t)

 s
h
o
w

s
 w

h
ic

h
 C

e
n
s
u
s
 O

u
tp

u
t 

A
re

a
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 

w
a
rd

, 
a
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
a
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

w
a
rd

s
. 

 C
e
n
s
u
s
 O

u
tp

u
t 

A
re

a
 (

O
A

) 
d
a
ta

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
g
g
re

g
a
te

d
 o

n
 a

 b
e
s
t 
fi
t 
b
a
s
is

 t
o
 m

a
tc

h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
a
rd

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
 a

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 
T

h
is

 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
n
e
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 O

ff
ic

e
 f
o
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 (

O
N

S
) 

in
 

p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
 c

e
n
s
u
s
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 f

o
r 

n
o
n
-s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 

g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ie

s
. 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

is
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 c

a
n
 b

e
 f
o
u
n
d
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 O

N
S

 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a

t:
 h

tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.o
n
s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/o

n
s
/g

u
id

e
-

m
e
th

o
d
/g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

y
/g

e
o

g
ra

p
h
ic

-p
o

lic
y
/b

e
s
t-

fi
t-

p
o
lic

y
/i
n
d

e
x
.h

tm
l�
�

Page 118



P
a

g
e

 1
2
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
u
rc

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 O

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 C

e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 C
e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 d

a
ta

 t
a
b
le

s
 

a
re

 q
u
o
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
  

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 U

n
it

: 
c
ru

@
to

w
e
rh

a
m

le
ts

.g
o

v
.u

k

F
o
r 

m
o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

s
e
e
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 P

ro
fi
le

 p
a
g

e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n
te

rn
e
t.
  

C
e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 d

a
ta

 t
a
b
le

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 O

ff
ic

e
 f
o
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 
la

b
o
u
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 w

e
b
p
a
g

e
. 
 

Page 119



Appendix 1

Page 120



Page 121



Appendix 1

Page 122



Page 123



Appendix 1

Page 124



�

��������	
���

�	�� ��������		
�

����� ����

��
������������

�	� ��
�����

��� ��������������

�������� �� �!�
���
�

���	������ ����

����������	�
�������������������
��	�
�����������������������������
�������
���

�������	������������������������������������������
���������
���������������������
�����������
��������������
���

�����

������ ������

!�����������������������������"����������#�������

������������������ �����!������

$���������������

�%���&�''()*�

'���������������

�������+,-�,�.�

�������������	����
���

���	������������������������


�����
���������
������������������
����������������������

�����	������
��� 
����

�����	������	
!��

Dear Mr Tolley, 

On behalf of Cllr Abdul Asad and Cllr Aminur Khan

RE: Charlie’s Angel, 30 Alie Street, E1 3DA & White Gentlemen’s Club, 32/38 Leman Street, E1 8EW 

We write to oppose the recent applications submitted by the above Sexual Entertainment clubs to gain license 
providing entertainment of a sexual nature. 

Having spoken to yourself and Mr Andy Bamber, Cllr Aminur Khan and I are deeply concerned about the effect that 
these venue may have on the local area; additionally, many residents in the surrounding areas - in particular 
Scarborough Street, Gowers Walk, Mansell Street and Alie Street, have voiced their concerns about this proposal 
believing it may have a negative impact on their young children; its proximity to local schools (Harry Gosling Primary 
School and English Martyrs Catholic Primary school) is a notable cause for anxiety.  

We feel that it is important that we represent the concerns of the local residents and bring this forward to your 
knowledge. 

Can you please update us on this matter as soon as possible. 

Kind regards, 

Cllr Asad & Cllr Khan 

Page 125



Appendix 1

Page 126



�

��������	
���

�	��

����� ����������	�����������

�	� ����
��
�

�������� �� �����
!�	!��
��
!�"�
����##����!��
�

�	��	
��������� $����%��#

������������ &��#��!��

�����������	
�

��������������������������������	����	�������������	����������������������������������
�������������������

���������������������	���������������������������������� ��

!�������"�

#�����$��%�	����

&'�%����(������

�������

)*�+�%�

,������������������������������������-.,��������������������������������
�������������������������������/�

* ,�������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������

���������������*'�������������������������� �)0)12�������	���������������&��������*��������������������

�������������������������������������������������������������������	����� �,�����������	������������*'���������

���������3�������� ��

,�������������	��������������������������������������������������� ��

� ,�����������������������������������	��	������������������	�������������������
�����������������������

����	�����������������$����� ��������	��������������������������� �

& ,�����	��	����������������������������������������������������������������	��������� �.�����������������

	��	��������������������������������������������������������������������� �,������������������������

�������������������������������������������������������������	������������������������������������������������

�������������������
��������������������� ������������������������,�����������������������������������

�������������������� ����	�����	 �

4 ���	��������������������������
�������������������������������������������������� ���������������������

��������������������������	��������������� �3���������	���1�	��1��������������������������������������

�������������� ����������������������������������������������������������������*�������� �

3 5��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �,�������

�������	���������������	
�������������������������������������������������������� �.�������������������������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���$��	�����	�������������������

����������
����������������� �

6 -�7���������������������������������������7�����������������������	 �#�������������������������������������&

�����������������	������������	��������7���������������������������� �%���������������������������������������

�������������������� �

Page 127



�

8 .������������������������������������	�	���������������������������������������	��
�����������������

����������������������������������������	��������������� �,������������	��������	����������������������������

���������������7��������������������������	�������������������������� ����	�����	�

+ ,����������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������

���������������������������������
�������������������	���	����������������������������������������������
�

�����������
�����������
������������� �(������������ �9���������� ��

��������	���	�����������������������	�� �,������������������������������������������������	�����������������������

�����������������	����������������� �,��������������������������������������������������������������������	 �

,������������������������������������������ ������������������������������������������������������
�����������

�����������������������������
�����������������������������������������������	� �

:����1�	����

Page 128



�

����������	�


�	�� ������������

���� 	
��������	
����	�

�	�

��� ���� �!���

������� "#����$����#�%�%������%�&������

�

�

�

��

�

�

�

��

��

�

��

��

�

�

�

��

�

88888$��������&������88888�

3���. �

����.�*(�������,/*(�/1.*<�

	�.�������"������

�� =���.�>�.���4����)���������������������

-����&��������������

����������������������������������������������
�������������������������������
����
��
������������������
����

����7����������������
����
������������

	
�����������������������������,��� ���������
������������
���������������� �������������
���� ��������
����������

�
����������
�����������������������
�����������	������������������*/������������������������������� ��������������

 ���
����=���� ������������������� ���������
����������������
����������
�������
��������������������������
��

,�������������
�����������
�����������������������
����
���������������������������������
��������

	
��
��������������������
�������������������

	
��������������,������� �������������
�����������
��������������
��
������������������������
��� ��������
����
�

���������������4
�������������������
����
�������������������������
�����������
������
�������������
��
��
��

���� ������
�����?��
������������
������� ���������������� �������
������������
�����������$�������
�������������������

*�����
��������� ����

Page 129



�

'�����������
�������
����
�����������������
������������� ��������

>�������

�

�

��

�

��

�

�

��

�

�

�

�

��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

��

�

�

��

�

��

�

��

�

�

Page 130



�

����������	�


�	��

���� �����	�������������

�	� �����������


��� �
�	� �!�	�


������� "�����#����$
%�	%��
��
%�&���
��

������������ �������'()*��++������%#%*��������'()*��++������%#%*��������'()*��++������%#%

�����������	
���

���������	��������	�����������������������
���������������������������
������������������������
�
�������������������

��������������������������
������������
����������	����	���������������������	����
���
��������
������������������

������������	��������
�������
�
��������������
��������������� ����������	����������
��	���������
��������	�������������

�������������
��
������������ !��������
�������������������������	��������������
�
����������
������	���������������

��
��"���#��������������������������������������
���
�����
������������������������
�����#������
���������������������

�����$
�	������!��%�	���	�����������������������������
�����
���
�� �����������������	�
�������
�������������
�������

����	�����
��������������#��������
���������������
���
	����������������
������������

���
��������������������������������������	�	�!������������������
���
�����	�����
�������������
�	����
����
���

�����	�������	�������
����������������������������������������	��������������������
����

������ ���������	��
������������������
�&���������	�����������
��������������	�	�!������
������
���
���� ������

�
�����������	���������
�����������
���
	����������

 ��������������������	�����������������������		�������������
������������
����

'���
	��

�

Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



�

��������	
��

����

����� �����
���������������

�� ���	
��
�

�������� � !��"	#����	
$	�$��
�	
$�%	
�	��&&����$��
�

Good Evening, 

I agree with and echo all the views below. 

I live in  Which is approximately 10 metres from the rear 

of the premises that is requesting the licence. 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From:

Date: 2 January 2015 23:34:32 GMT 

To:

Subject: Fwd: Sexual entertainment venue applications

Begin forwarded message: 

From:

Date: 23 December 2014 02:08:22 GMT 

To: Licensing <

Good Morning, 

I had intended to write to you regarding the following premises before the 

29th December, however I was just abruptly woken up yet again by occupants 

of the same premises.  

Premises: 

Charlie's Angels 

30 Alie Street 

london 

E1 8DA 

I live on East Tenter Street where it joins North Tenter Street, I live 10 meters 

away from the rear entrance of the above premises. 

There are so many reason why you should NOT issue a licence to this 

premises, I will list these reasons below; 

Page 135



�

1. The female dancers who work within, some of them live above the

premises and the entrance to this accommodation is 10 metres from my front 

door. EVERY morning between 2am and 3am I hear 1 or 2 of them shout up 

to the window for the other occupant to open the door so they can get in. This 

shouting can last for 10 seconds or up to 5 minutes.  

They have no regard or respect for the other residents on the street.  

2. They throw empty bottles into their garbage bin every morning around the

same time, they make so much noise doing this and they don't care. I always 

get woken up around this time. 

3. Their garbage bin is on the public foot path so you have to walk on the road

to get past it. On one occasion the garbage bin smashed into my car and I had 

to make an insurance claim for the repairs. The dancers who live above leave 

so much litter and rubbish on the street which is not packaged correctly in the 

correct refuse sacks and ends up all over the place, usually sticks as well. I 

have seen used sanitary Towels all over the path and road around where my 

car was parked. Disgusting. 

4. Drug dealers roll up continually, a member of staff comes out the back and

does the deal. I used to be a police officer so I know what a drug deal looks 

like. 5 minutes ago a Range Rover just rolled up and did a deal with 

a  member of staff. I sometimes call the police and have done so many times 

in the last 12 months. 

5. Before the customers go into the premises but mostly when they leave they

decide to urinate on my street. This is either against my building, my front 

door or on my windows as I live in a basement flat. On one occasion I went 

out and made the drunken sod take his jacket off and clean my window where 

he pissed. It's getting worse and for this reason alone, it needs to stop. 

6. Next to my front door there is also a fire exit for an office building.

Customers come out the premises and on 3 occasions I have caught them 

having full sex in the door way in full view. At least one of the occasions it 

was with a dancer from the venue. 

7. On one occasion I heard someone urinating against my window I went out

and chased the guy, he went into the front of the venue and asked the security 

guard to help him. The security guard apologised on his behalf and said he 

was one of the taxi drivers they use to take girls or the customers home. 

Disgusting 

8. The level of noise the venue attracts is too much and too loud, customers

abandon their cars on the pavement outside my window or on my street, make 

so much noise going into the venue and make even more on the way out, then 

urinate, shout swear, smash bottles. So much noise. Unbelievable.  

I am not going to tolerate this any longer. This venue is too too close to 

residential buildings and the owner staff or whoever have no regard for 

anyone else. There is even more residential premises now since this area is 

developing. This venue needs to be moved somewhere else. If you need to 

come and see for yourself then please do, contact me and I will be happy to 

show you, but please keep my details confidential at this stage. 

Kind Regards 

Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Appendix

Page 139



1

Appendix One 

Tower Hamlets Council 

Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 

Introduction 

This policy sets out Tower Hamlets Council’s proposed approach to regulating sex 

establishments and the procedure that it will adopt in relation to applications for sex 

establishment licences. 

The policy of the Council is to refuse applications for sexual entertainment venues. 

This policy is intended to be strictly applied and will only be overridden in genuinely 

exceptional circumstances. Such circumstances will not be taken to include the 

quality of the management, its compliance with licence conditions, the size of the 

premises or its operating hours. 

The policy is intended as a guide to applicants, licence holders, people who want to 

object to applications and members of the Licensing Committee who are responsible 

for determining contested applications. It also aims to guide and reassure the public 

and other public authorities, ensuring transparency and consistency in decision 

making. 

When the decision making powers of the Council are engaged each application will 

be dealt with on its own merits but this policy gives prospective applicants an early 

indication of whether their application is likely to be granted or not. It also provides 

prospective applicants details of what is expected of them should an application be 

made. 

The legal controls for sex establishment premises are contained in the Local 

Governmental (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the Policing 

and Crime Act 2009.  

There are 3 types of sex establishments which fall into the licensing regime:- 

Page 140



2

Sex shops 

Sex cinemas 

Sexual entertainment venues 

The role of the Council in its position as Licensing Authority is to administer the 

licensing regime in accordance with the law and not in accordance with moral 

standing. The Council recognises that Parliament has made it lawful to operate a sex 

establishment and such businesses are a legitimate part of the retail and leisure 

industries. 

Policy Rationale 

The policy has been developed that sets out how the legislation will be administered 
and applied. The policy identifies how the Council would exercise the licensing 
regime in relation to sexual entertainment venues. 

The policy has been developed to reflect and complement existing Council plans and 
strategic approach, namely:- 

• Tower Hamlets Community Plan.
• Tower Hamlets Crime & Drug Reduction Partnership Plan.
• Tower Hamlets Enforcement Policy.
• Tower Hamlets Core Strategy.
• Tower Hamlets Town Centre Spatial Strategy.
• Tower Hamlets Statement of Licensing Policy (Licensing Act 2003).
• Tower Hamlets Statement of Licensing Policy (Gambling Act 2005).

The policy has also been prepared with regard to: 

• Consultation responses
• Human Rights Act 1998
• Equalities Act 2010

The policy seeks to contribute to the “One Tower Hamlets” principle by fostering  
community cohesion, reducing inequalities and empowering communities. 
The public consultation that was undertaken concerning the adoption of a nil policy 

did not have overwhelming support. Therefore careful consideration has been given 

to the policy response, given the balance that the consultation returns did not give 

overwhelming support. 

Page 141



3

Policy Considerations 

Existing Licensed Premises 

The Council has had the ability to licence sex shops and sex cinemas under the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 for many years. 

There are no licensed sex shops in Tower Hamlets. 

The businesses that hold premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003 with 

permissions that will be affected by the adoption of the sexual entertainment venue 

licensing regime are as follows:- 

NAME ADDRESS 

THE BEEHIVE 104-106 Empson Street, London, E3 3LT 

EONE CLUB 168 Mile End Road, London, E1 4LJ 

NAGS HEAD PUBLIC 
HOUSE 17-19 Whitechapel Road, London, E1 1DU 

THE PLEASURE LOUNGE 234 Cambridge Heath Road, London, E2 9NN 

WHITE SWAN 556 Commercial Road, London, E14 7JD 

ASTON'S CHAMPAGNE 
AND WINE BAR 
BASEMENT & 1ST FLOOR 187 Marsh Wall, London, E14 9SH 

CLUB PAISA 28 Hancock Road,London, E3 3DA 

OOPS 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA 

WHITE'S GENTLEMANS 
CLUB   32-38 Leman Street, London, E1 8EW 

SECRETS 43-45 East Smithfield,London,E1W 1AP 

IMAGES 483 Hackney Road, London, E2 9ED 

Tower Hamlets Council has adopted schedule 3 Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1982 with effect from 1st June 2014 so that it can: 

• set a limit on the number of sexual entertainment venues

• determine premises that are appropriate for the borough and

• licence sexual entertainment venues

Sexual entertainment venues are those that regularly provide lap dancing and other 

forms of live performance or live display of nudity. 

Page 142



4

Establishments that hold events involving full or partial nudity less than once a month 

may be exempt from the requirements to obtain a sex establishment licence and 

applicants are advised to contact the Licensing Team for advice. 

Limits on the number of licensed premises 

The Council has determined that there are a sufficient number of sex shops, sex 

cinemas and sexual entertainment venues currently operating in the borough and it 

does not want to see an increase in the numbers of premises that are currently 

providing these activities. 

The Council intends to adopt a policy to limit the number of sexual entertainment 

venues in the borough to nil however it recognises that there are a number of 

businesses that have been providing sexual entertainment in Tower Hamlets for 

several years. The Council will not apply this limitation when considering applications 

for premises that were already trading with express permission for the type of 

entertainment which is now defined as sexual entertainment on the date that the 

licensing provisions were adopted by the authority if they can demonstrate in their 

application: 

• High standards of management

• A management structure and capacity to operate the venue

• The ability to adhere to the standard conditions for sex establishments

The Council will consider each application on its merit although new applicants will 

have to demonstrate why the Council should depart from its policy. Furthermore if 

any of the existing premises cease trading there is no presumption that the Council 

will consider any new applications more favourably. 

Location of premises 

Page 143



5

The Council’s policy is that there is no locality within Tower Hamlets in which it would 

be appropriate to license a sex establishment. Accordingly, the appropriate number 

of sex establishments for each and every locality within Tower Hamlets is zero.

As previously stated in the policy the Council will treat each application on its own 

merits however applicants should be aware that the Council will take into 

consideration the location of the proposed premises and its proximity to: 

• residential accommodation,

• schools,

• premises used by children and vulnerable persons

• youth, community & leisure centres,

• religious centres and public places of worship

• access routes to and from premises listed above

• existing licensed premises in the vicinity

Impact 

In considering applications for the grant of new or variation applications the Council 

will assess the likelihood of a grant causing impacts, particularly on the local 

community. 

The Council will take the following matters into account: 

• the type of activity

• the duration of the proposed licence

• the proposed hours of operation

• the layout and condition of the premises

• the use of other premises in the vicinity

• the character and locality of the area

• the applicant’s previous knowledge and experience

• the applicant’s ability to minimise the impact of their business on

local residents and businesses

• any evidence of the operation of existing /previous licences held

by the applicant

Page 144



6

• any reports about the applicant and management of the

premises received from residents, Council officers or the police

• the ability of the proposed management structure to deliver

compliance with licensing requirements, policies on staff training

and the welfare of performers

• crime and disorder issues

• cumulative impact of licensed premises, including hours of

operation

• the nature and concerns of local residents

• any evidence of complaints about noise or disturbance caused

by premises

• planning permission and planning policy considerations

In considering applications for renewal the Council will take into account 

• the applicant’s ability to minimise the impact of their business on

local residents and businesses

• any reports about the licensee and management of the premises

received from residents, Council officers or the police

• whether appropriate measures have been agreed and put into

place to mitigate any adverse impacts

• any evidence of complaints about noise or disturbance caused

by premises

In considering applications for transfer the Council will take into account: 

• the applicants previous knowledge and experience

• the applicants ability to minimise the impact of their business on

local residents and businesses

• any evidence of the operation of existing /previous licences held

by the applicant

• any reports about the applicant and management of the

premises received from residents, Council officers or the police

Page 145



7

• the ability of the proposed management structure to deliver

compliance with licensing requirements, policies on staff training

and the welfare of performers

Applicants 

Where appropriate the Council expects applicants to: 

• demonstrate that they are qualified by experience

• have an understanding of general conditions

• propose a management structure which will deliver compliance

• with operating conditions for example through

• Management competence

• Presence

• Credible management structure

• enforcement of rules internally – training & monitoring

• a viable business plan covering door staff, CCTV

• policies for welfare of performers

• demonstrate that they can be relied upon to act in best interests of performers

through remuneration, facilities, protection, physical and psychological welfare

• have a transparent charging scheme with freedom from solicitation

• a track record of management compliant premises or employ individuals with

such a track record

New applicants may be invited for interview by the Licensing Officer and /or Police 

Officer prior to the application being referred to the Licensing Committee for 

determination. 

Applications from anyone who intends to manage the premises on behalf of third 

party will be refused. 

Premises appearance and layout 

The Council expects premises to:- 

• have an external appearance which is in keeping with the locality

• prevent the display outside the premises of photographs or other images

which may be construed as offensive to public decency

Page 146



8

• adequate lighting to allow monitoring of all public areas

• surveillance by CCTV

• surveillance by CCTV of all private booths

Conditions 

The council will prescribe, and from time to time revise, standard conditions which 
will apply generally to licences that the council will grant or renew. 

Through standard conditions the council seeks to ensure that sexual entertainment 
venues are well managed and supervised, restrict the sexual entertainment 
activities and the manner in which they are permitted to be provided, protect 
performers, and control the impact of the venue and its customers in relation to its 
locality. 

Specifically, standard conditions could include measures which are found in the 

appendix of this policy.

The Application Process 

Making a new, renewal, transfer or variation application 

The Act requires the Council to refuse all application if the applicant: 

• Is under the age of 18 or

• Has had their licence revoked in the last 12 months or

• Is not resident in the UK, or has not been a UK resident for the last 6months

or

• Has been refused an application in the last 12 months or

• Is a corporate body which in not incorporated in the UK

Applications forms and details of current fee levels are available: 

• on the Council’s website (www.towerhamlets .gov.uk)

• from the Licensing Team on 020 7364 5008

• by email to licensing@towerhamlets .gov.uk

The Council prefers to receive electronic applications and offers a choice off 

payment options the details of which are contained in the application pack. 

Page 147



9

The Council expects the premises to have planning consent for the intended use and 

hours of operation, or otherwise have lawful planning status before making an 

application for a new licence. 

In order for the application to be valid the applicant must: 

• Submit the completed application form

• Pay the application fee

• Submit a floor plan, drawn to scale showing the layout of the premises( new

applications only)

• Submit a location plan (1;1250) showing the location of the premises(NB.

plans will not be required for transfers nor renewal applications)

• 2 passport size photos of the applicant where the applicant is an individual

rather than a limited company

• 2 passport size photos of the manager if applicant is a limited company(NB:

photos will only be required if there has been a change of applicant or

manager since the last application)

• Display an A4 notice at the proposed premises for 21 days following the date

that the completed application is submitted setting out the application details.

The notice must be in a prominent position so that it can be easily read by

passers-by. A notice template will be provided with the application form.

• publish a notice on at least one occasion in a local newspaper, during the
period of ten working days starting on the day the application was given
Council. The advert can be any size or colour but must be readable.

Applicants who wish to advertise the application in another local newspaper are 

advised to contact the Licensing Team beforehand, to confirm that it is acceptable. 

On receipt of a valid application the Council will consult: 

• The Police

• The Fire Brigade

• Building Control

• Health and Safety

• Ward Councillors

For new and variation applications the Council will also consult: 

Page 148



10

• Development Control Team

• Local residents living within 50m of the premises

Authorised Officers from the Council, Fire Brigade and Police may choose to inspect 

the premises and require works to be carried out to bring the premises up to the 

required standard before the premises can be used for licensable activities. 

The Council will not determine an application for a licence unless the applicant 

allows an authorised officer reasonable opportunity to enter the premises to make 

such examination and enquiries as may be necessary to determine the suitability of 

the applicant and the sex establishment. 

Representations 

Anyone wishing to object to the application must submit a representation, in writing, 

within 28 days of the date that the valid application was received by the Council.  

Representations can either be submitted via 

• Our website:www.towerhamlets .gov.uk

• Email to:licensing@towerhamlets .gov.uk

• Post to: Consumer and Business Regulations, Licensing Team, 6th Floor,

Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG.

A person making a representation must clearly state their name, address, and the 

grounds for objecting to the application and indicate whether they consent to have 

their name and address revealed to the applicant. Copies of representations will be 

made available to the applicant 14 days before the committee hearing. 

The Council will not consider objections that are frivolous or vexatious or which 

relate to moral grounds (as these are outside the scope of the Act). 

The Council prefers to receive electronic representations. 

Late representations may be admissible at the discretion of the Council if there’s 

sufficient reason to indicate that applicants will not be significantly prejudiced by the 

Page 149



11

decision to allow a late objection to be considered. In making such a decision the 

Council will take into account: 

• The length of the delay 

• The amount of time that the applicant has to consider the 

representation before the hearing date 

• If other representations have been received before the deadline 

Determining an application 

Applications with no representations will be approved under delegated authority to 

officers. 

Applications with representations recommending that conditions be attached to the 

licence and which are acceptable to both the applicant and person making the 

representation can be approved under delegated authority to officers. 

All other contested applications will be referred to the Licensing Committee for 

determination. The applicant, anyone making a representation and the ward 

Councillors will be notified the date, time and venue of the hearing and invited to 

attend to address the committee in person. 

Applications can take up to 14 weeks to be determined. If an application is likely to 

take longer than 14 weeks to determine the Council will notify the applicant in writing 

before this deadline. Applications for sex establishment licenses are exempt from the 

tacit consent provisions of the EU Services Directive on the grounds of public 

interest and the legitimate interests of third parties. 

The applicant will be notified in writing about the outcome of their application 

within 5 working days of the decision being made. 

Page 150



12

Sex Establishment licences are usually issued for 12 months, but can be issued for a 

shorter period if deemed appropriate. 

In order to continue operating as a sex establishment the licence holder must make 

a renewal application prior to the expiry of the existing licence. 

Appeals 

Any applicant who is aggrieved by a decision to refuse an application or by the 

imposition of any conditions can appeal to the Magistrates Court within21days of 

receiving the decision in writing.

Grounds for refusing an application 

1. The applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence by reason of having been convicted of

any offence or for any other reason 

2. That if the license were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to

which it relates would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other 

than the applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a 

license if he made the application himself 

3. That the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time the

application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which the authority consider is 

appropriate for that locality 

4. That the grant or renewal of the license would be inappropriate, having regard:-

a. to the character of the relevant locality

b. to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

c. to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall

in respect of which the application is made. 

Page 151



13

Transitional Arrangements  

Broadly speaking, those existing sexual entertainment venues (lap dancing clubs 

etc) with a premises licence  under the Licensing Act 2003,under which it is lawful 

to provide such entertainment, will continue to be able to operate for one year 

after the Council adopts the 2009 Act provisions or, if later, the determination of 

any application submitted during that year. 

The ‘transitional period’ will last for 12-months beginning with the date that the 

Council resolves that Schedule 3 as amended by the 2009 Act will come into 

force in their area (‘the 1st appointed day’). Six months following the 1st 

appointed day will be known as the ‘2nd appointed day’ and the day on which the 

transitional period ends will be known as the ‘3rd appointed day 

Existing Operators 

To allow time to comply with the new regime, existing operators, who, 

immediately before the 1st appointed day, have a 2003 Act licence and lawfully 

use premises as a sexual entertainment venue under that licence or are 

undertaking preparatory work to use the venue in that way will be allowed to 

continue to provide relevant entertainment until the 3rd appointed day or the 

determination of any application they have submitted before that time (including 

any appeal against the refusal to grant a licence), whichever is later 

For the purposes of the Transition a “2003 Act Licence” means a premises 

licence or club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 under which it is 

lawful to provide relevant entertainment. 

“Preparatory work” refers to work carried out by an operator, such as a 

refurbishment or refit, in order that they can use the premises as a sexual 

entertainment venue in the future. The operator will have been granted a 2003 

Act licence before the 1
st

appointed day but will not have used the premises as a 

sexual entertainment venue by that date. It is likely that such operators will be 

known to the Council. However, where a dispute arises between the Council and 

Page 152



14

a licence-holder over whether the licence-holder qualifies as an existing operator 

by virtue of this provision the Council will need to seek evidence from the 

licence-holder to demonstrate that they clearly intended to operate a sexual 

entertainment venue in the future and work had been done to achieve this end.  

For the purposes of the Transition a “2003 Act Licence” means a premises 

licence or club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 under which it is 

lawful to provide relevant entertainment. 

Appointed Days 

1st Appointed Day 

The day on which the Sexual Entertainment Venue regime comes into force in 

the Borough and the beginning of the transitional period (1st June 2014)

2nd Appointed Day 

The day 6 months after the 1st appointed day (1st December 2014) 

3rd Appointed Day 

The day 6 months after the 2nd appointed day and the end of the transitional 

period (1st June 2015)

New Applications 

New applicants are people who wish to use premises as a sexual entertainment 

venue after the 1st appointed day but do not already have a premises licence or 

club premises certificate to operate as such under the 2003 Act or do have such 

a licence but have not taken any steps towards operating as such. After the 1st 

appointed day new applicants will not be able to operate as a sexual 

entertainment venue until they have been granted a sexual entertainment venue 

licence 

Determining Applications Received On or Before the 2nd Appointed Day 

Page 153



15

Applicants will be able to submit their application for a sexual entertainment 

venue from the 1st appointed day onwards.  

As the Council is able to refuse applications having regard to the number of sex 

establishment they consider appropriate for a particular locality, all applications 

made on or after the 1
st

appointed day but on or before the 2nd appointed day 

shall be considered together. This will ensure that applicants are given sufficient 

time to submit their application and all applications received on or before the 2nd 

appointed day are considered on their individual merit and not on a first come first 

serve basis. 

No applications shall be determined before the 2nd appointed day. After the 2nd 

appointed day the appropriate authority shall decide what if any licences should 

be granted. If a new applicant is granted a licence it will take effect immediately. 

If an existing operator is granted a licence, it will not take effect until the 3rd 

appointed day, up to which point they will be allowed to continue to operate 

under their existing premises licence or club premises certificate.  

Determining Applications Received After the 2nd Appointed Day 

Applications made after the 2nd appointed day shall be considered when they 

are made but only once all applications made on or before that date have been 

determined. However, reference to determination here does not include 

references to the determination of any appeal against the refusal of a licence.  

As with applications received on or before the 2nd appointed day, licences 

granted to new applicants shall take effect immediately and licences granted to 

existing operators shall take effect from the 3rd appointed day or, if later, the 

date the application is determined.  

Outstanding Applications  

The Council will attempt where possible to determine outstanding applications 

made under the 2003 Act, which include an application for the provision of 

Page 154



16

relevant entertainment, before the date that Schedule 3 as amended by the 2009 

Act comes into force in their area.  

Where it has not been possible to determine application before the 1st appointed 

day, applicants will need to submit an application for a sex establishment licence 

as set out in Schedule 3 if they wish to provide relevant entertainment. From the 

1st appointed day onwards outstanding applicants shall be dealt with as though 

they are new applicants 

Additional information and advice 

Please contact: 

Consumer and Business Regulations 

Licensing Team 

6th Floor, 

Mulberry Place,  

5 Clove Crescent,  

E14 2BG. 

licensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

020 7364 5008 

Page 155



Appendix 20 

Page 156



�

����������	�


�	�� ������������

���� ������������������

�	� � ���!�"��� 

������� #$��%$&�'��� ����(�����)*�� +�*�

������������ ,��
�*�*�'��� ���-�*������� ������������.�/�-0(12�,��
�*�*�'��� ���-�*������� ����

��������.�/�-0(1


	��	�����
���� ���!���


���������� (�
�����

����������	�

�
�������������������������������������
�����������
��
�����������������������

��
������������������������	����

������������������������

������������

Maria Guida | Partner 

Fletcher Day | 25 Savile Row | Mayfair | London | W1S 2ER

  

Fletcher Day is the trading name for Fletcher Day Limited. Registered in England & Wales number 08367719. Authorised and regulated by the 
Solicitors Regulation Authority 
under number 614192. With effect from 1 September 2014 the business of Fletcher Day LLP  transferred to Fletcher Day Limited. Our terms and 
conditions remain the same. 
Confidentiality:  This e-mail and its attachments are intended for the  above named only and may be confidential. If they have come to you in error 
you must take no action 
based on them, nor must you copy or show them to anyone.  Please reply to this e-mail and highlight the error. 

�������������	��
�� �

���	����������������������


��� ���!����
�����	��"#��$#%�&�'��'���(�����)����������

 ��������	��������!���

 �����"�

�����	�#�����

$��������%&&�����

$��������'�������

Page 157



�

$������(�������&�)�	���#�������

*��������+������),��

-
��
�.�����*��������+�����

/�,�����,��������

$�����"�0�1��(2�

)��3�4�4�56-1��--/�

.�73�4�4�56-1�-86/�

			���	��������������!��

������ ���!���� ��

���	��������������������,�

����������	��
��

��������-'�
 �

�����	��$#%�&�'��'���(�����)����������

����������	�

.�������������������"�
������&�������������
����������������������
�����&�����������������������
�����

+�������������!��	��&��������������9��������

������������

Maria Guida | Partner | Property 
Fletcher Day �

25 Savile Row | Mayfair | London | W1S 2ER�
DX:�37227 Piccadilly�

�

www.fletcherday.co.uk�

Fletcher Day is the trading name for Fletcher Day Limited. Registered in England & Wales number 08367719. Authorised and regulated by the 
Solicitors Regulation Authority under number 614192.  

With effect from 1 September 2014 the business of Fletcher Day LLP transferred to Fletcher Day Limited. Our terms and conditions remain the 
same.  

Confidentiality:  This e-mail and its attachments are intended for the above named only and may be confidential. If they have come to you in error 
you must take no action based on them, nor must you copy or show them to anyone.  Please reply to this e-mail and highlight the error.  

********************************************************************************* 

Working Together for a Better Tower Hamlets 

Web site : http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk

London Borough of Tower Hamlets E-Mail Disclaimer. 

This communication and any attachments are intended for the  addressee only and may be confidential. It may contain privileged and confidential information 
and if you are not the intended recipient, you must not copy, distribute or take any action in reliance on it. If you have received this E-Mail in error please 
notify us as soon as possible and delete this E-Mail and any attachments. This message has been checked for viruses, however we cannot guarantee that 
this message or any attachment is virus free or has not been intercepted or amended. The information contained in this E-Mail may be subject to public 

Page 158



���������

The Applicant describes the premises as follows: 

“Club Charlie’s Angels is located at 30 Alie Street, London E1 8DA. 

Frontage 
The outside of the building is painted black to first floor level with exposed brickwork above. 
All glass frontage is covered in opaque black surfaces. An illuminated sign at the top of the 
premises frontage shows “Charlie’s Angels” with the premises logo displayed. To the left and 
at the side of the premises is another illuminated sign showing a woman’s face and 
advertising the club. We appreciate that this sign is unacceptable under the new law and we 
shall remove the sign.  

Above the frontage of the premises on the left hand side is a small oval shaped side-on sign 
displaying the premises name “Charlie’s Angels” with its logo. There is an illuminated menu 
box on the front of the premises to the right of, but some distance from, the front door which 
displays a summary code of conduct for customers and menu including all prices. There is 
no other advertising.  

There is a small area outside at the front of the premises for smokers or for those wishing to 
enjoy a drink outside. There is black granite seating along the inner perimeter of this area 
(right hand side and front), 2 long tables and 6 stools. Any performer sitting in this area is 
always discreetly dressed wearing a long coat or long jacket.  This area is screened to a 
height of approximately 3.5 feet. 

Entrance and Reception/Cloakroom 
Entrance to the building is via a black, single door which opens into a small foyer area with 
the reception and cloakroom immediately in front. To the left on the wall, are signs detailing 
charges, house rules, the code of conduct for customers and dancers and that entrance is 
forbidden to those under the age of 18 when sexual entertainment is taking place. Before 
8pm the door is staffed either by a duty manager, or by a SIA registered doorman, or both. 
After 8:00pm, the entrance door is staffed by one SIA registered doorman. A duty manager 
will also from time to time be present.  

The inside of  the venue is divided into 4 areas, the reception/lounge area which contains the 
reception and cloakroom as you enter, with seating and tables, down to the Main Seating 
Area with sofas, tables, the main stage, a DJ booth and the bar as shown on the plans 
accompanying the SEV application. There is a VIP dance area on the 1st floor. More detail is 
as follows: 

• Reception/Lounge Area – the Reception/Lounge Area comprises the reception area
and cloakroom with 5 steps at the rear of this section, leading down to the Main Seating
Area.  There are 6 bar stools and 3 high tables. There are also double sofas seating 4
people in total, 2 single sofas seating 1 person each and 2 coffee tables. No dancing
takes place in this area. To the right of the Reception/Lounge Area is a door leading to
the toilets, and VIP Room. To the rear of this front area are 5 steps leading down to the
Main Seating Area.

• Customer Toilets – the gentleman’s and ladies toilets are both in the basement.

• Main Seating Area – the Main Seating Area has a raised stage and a DJ booth. The
Main Seating Area is appropriately lit, painted a deep brown colour and carpeted (red
and black). In this area there are 3  x 4 person high tables, and 2 x 2 person high tables,

Page 159



���������

with a total of 16 high stools. In addition there are 10 sofas and 10 tables. 

• VIP Dance Area – this is situated on the 1st floor of the premises. This consists of a
rectangular area with 7 booths, each with faux leather seating and coffee table. Each of
the private dance booths is decorated in dark brown with a 14 inch central border of
magnolia and the area is carpeted red and black as per the remainder of the premises.
Each booth has a CCTV Camera.

Club Charlie’s Angels currently trades from 4pm to 4am Monday to Friday. The busiest 
trading periods are on Thursday and Friday evenings. Entertainment is provided via 
performances on the main stage and private performances. For performances (pole dances) 
on the main stage, no monies are collected as these are not private dances, but just part of 
the general entertainment available at the premises. 

The performer will collect monies under supervision of management from the patrons in the 
Main Seating Area or the Lounge Area before a dance is performed. The dances performed 
will be in the Main Area. The dance will be routine to the backing track that is playing on the 
sound system, but is not a full nude striptease.  

For private performances, the performer will speak directly with the patron explaining the 
tariff to them before taking payment under management supervision and escorting them to 
one of the private dance areas in the VIP Room where they perform a fully nude striptease 
on a one-to-one basis. Performers in the main area, giving main stage performances and 
private performances do so in accordance with the venue’s code of conduct for performers. 

Each table has a drinks menu, tariff and code of conduct displayed for patrons to read. 
These are also placed on the bar, on display.” 

This description has been prepared to assist the Committee in absence of a site visit to help 
them in understand the nature of the premises. Should the committee have any further 
questions concerning the layout or operation of the premises then they are welcome to direct 
questions to the operator’s legal representative. 

Page 160


	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST
	2.1 Application for a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for Charlie's Angels, 30 Alie Street, London, E1 8DA
	Charlies Angels Appendices Only


